
NOTICE OF MEETING OF THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE
CITY OF NAVASOTA, TEXAS

MARCH 9, 2020

Notice is hereby given that a Regular Meeting of the governing body of the City of
Navasota will be held on the 9th of March, 2020 at 6:00 PM at the City Hall in the City
Council Chambers, Room No. 161, located at 200 E. McAlpine Street, Navasota, Texas
77868, at which time the following subjects will be considered, to wit:

1. Call to Order.

2. Invocation
Pledge of Allegiance

3. Remarks of visitors: Any citizen may address the City Council on any matter.
Registration forms are available on the podium and/or table in the back of the city
council chambers. This form should be completed and delivered to the City
Secretary by 5:45 p.m. Please limit remarks to three minutes. The City Council will
receive the information, ask staff to look into the matter, or place the issue on a
future agenda. Topics of operational concerns shall be directed to the City Manager.

4. Staff Report:

(a) Staff recognition for years of service;

(b) 2019 Texas Municipal League Awards;

(c) Drainage and parking lot project;

(d) Clean-up event ;

(e) Texas Birthday Bash results;

(f) Board and Commission update; and

(g) Reports from City Staff or City Officials regarding items of community interests,
including expressions of thanks, congratulations or condolence; information
regarding holiday schedules; honorary or salutary recognition of public officials,
public employees, or other citizens; reminders about upcoming events organized or
sponsored by the City; information regarding social, ceremonial, or community
events organized or sponsored by a non-City entity that is scheduled to be
attended by City officials or employees; and announcements involving imminent
threats to the public health and safety of people in the City that has arisen after
the posting of the agenda.

5. Conduct a public hearing for the purpose of receiving public comment and
testimony regarding a zoning change application submitted by James C Hassell for
the properties located in the A0062 J Whitesides Abstract. The zoning change
application requests to change the zoning from A/O: Agriculture/Open Space
District to PUD Pecan Lakes Estates Phase 3, for the development of a 102.4197-
acre single dwelling unit subdivision. The properties affected are legally described as
A0062 J Whitesides, Tract 19, Acres 13.4696, A0062 J Whitesides, Tract 14-3,
Acres 1.2275, A0062 J Whitesides, Tract 20-2, Acres 57.6204, A0062 J
Whitesides, Tract 14-2, Acres 43.9641, located in Navasota, Grimes County,
Texas.



6. Consideration and possible action on the first reading of Ordinance No. 919-20,
changing the current zoning from A/O: Agriculture/Open Space District to PUD
Pecan Lakes Estates Phase 3, for the development of a 102.4197-acre single
dwelling unit subdivision, the properties affected are legally described as A0062 J
Whitesides, Tract 19, Acres 13.4696, A0062 J Whitesides, Tract 14-3, Acres
1.2275, A0062 J Whitesides, Tract 20-2, Acres 57.6204, A0062 J Whitesides, Tract
14-2, Acres 43.9641, located in Navasota, Grimes County, Texas.

7. Workshop and possible action on a capital improvements project for utilities and
streets.

8. Conduct a public hearing for the purpose of receiving public comment and
testimony regarding amending Chapter 14 Zoning, Exhibit A Zoning Ordinance,
Article XXI Building Permits, Certificates of Occupancy and Certificates of
Compliance, 21.5 Site Plan Process, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of
Navasota, Grimes County, Texas, adding GIS requirements to as-built plans.

9. Consideration and possible action on the first reading of Ordinance No. 920-20,
amending Chapter 14 Zoning, Exhibit A Zoning Ordinance, Article XXI Building
Permits, Certificates of Occupancy and Certificates of Compliance, 21.5 Site Plan
Process, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Navasota, Grimes County, Texas,
adding GIS requirements to as-built plans.

10. Conduct a public hearing for the purpose of receiving public comment and
testimony regarding amending Chapter 10, Subdivision Regulation, Article 10.02
Subdivision Ordinance, Exhibit A Subdivision Development, Article 7 Requirements
for Improvement, Section 7.08 Utilities, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of
Navasota, Grimes County, Texas, regarding utility tap locations within utility
easements and adding GIS requirements to as-built plans.

11. Consideration and possible action on the first reading of Ordinance No. 921-20,
amending Chapter 10, Subdivision Regulation, Article 10.02 Subdivision Ordinance,
Exhibit A Subdivision Development, Article 7 Requirements for Improvement,
Section 7.08 Utilities, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Navasota, Grimes
County, Texas, regarding utility tap locations within utility easements and adding
GIS requirements to as-built plans.

12. Discussion, consideration and possible action on sale of City owned properties
legally described as Park Place, Block H, Lot 1, 2, located in Navasota, Grimes
County, Texas, and method of sale.



13. Consent Agenda: The following items may be acted upon with one motion and
vote. No separate discussion or action is necessary unless requested by the Mayor
or a City Councilmember, in which event the item will be removed from the Consent
Agenda for separate discussion and/or action by the City Council as part of the
regular agenda.

Consent Items Are:

A. Consideration and possible action on the minutes for the month of February,
2020;

B. Consideration and possible action on the expenditures for the month of
February, 2020;

C. Consideration and possible action on the second reading of Ordinance No. 916-
20, amending Chapter 3, Article 3.06 Signs, Section 3.06.010 Permissible Signs and
Requirements, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Navasota, Texas, regarding
monument, banner, flag freeway/pole, freestanding, wall mounted and
programmable signs;

D. Consideration and possible action on the second reading of Ordinance No. 917-
20, adopting Wireless Telecommunication Facilities Regulations; and

E. Consideration and possible action on the second reading of Ordinance No. 918-
20, amending the Uniform Right-of-Way management ordinance.

14. Adjourn.

DATED THIS THE 6TH OF MARCH, 2020

/BS/

BY: BRAD STAFFORD, CITY MANAGER

I, the undersigned authority, do hereby certify that the above notice of meeting
of the governing body of the CITY OF NAVASOTA, is a true and correct copy of
said notice and that I posted a true and correct copy of said notice in the glass
bulletin board, in the foyer, on the south side of the Municipal Building as well
as in the bulletin board on the north side of the Municipal Building of the City of
Navasota, Texas, a place convenient and readily accessible to the general public
at all times, and said notice was posted on the 6th of March, 2020 at 04:05 PM
and will remain posted continuously for at least 72 hours preceding the
scheduled time of said meeting. Agendas may be viewed at
www.navasotatx.gov.

The City Council reserves the right to convene in Executive Session at any time
deemed necessary for the consideration of confidential matters under the
Texas Government Code, Sections 551.071-551.084.

DATED THIS THE 6TH OF MARCH, 2020

/SMH/

BY: SUSIE M. HOMEYER, CITY SECRETARY



THIS FACILITY IS WHEELCHAIR ACCESSIBLE AND ACCESSIBLE PARKING
SPACES ARE AVAILABLE. REQUESTS FOR ACCOMMODATIONS OR
INTERPRETIVE SERVICES MUST BE MADE 48 HOURS PRIOR TO THIS
MEETING. PLEASE CONTACT THE CITY SECRETARY'S OFFICE
AT(936) 825 6475 OR (936) 825 6408 OR BY FAX AT (936) 825 2403.



City Manager’s Message 

An Executive Summary of Agenda Items and Current Issues 

 

City of Navasota 

City Council Meeting 

3-9-2020 

 

1.  Call to order 

 

2. Invocation and Pledges of Allegiance 

  

3. Remarks of Visitors 

Staff was notified by Cheryl Boone that she would be addressing the City Council 

regarding a light placed on her neighbor’s property.  Staff has worked with her on 

the issue for a couple of weeks. 

 

4.  Staff Report: 

  Staff recognition for years of service - We will recognize staff who is celebrating 

an employment anniversary this month. 

 

2019 Texas Municipal League Awards – Mayor Miller was recognized by TML 

for his attendance to training sessions. 

 

Drainage and parking lot project – staff will report on the progress of the drainage 

and parking lot project. 

 

Clean-up event – Staff will provide a reminder of the City-Wide Cleanup event. 

 

Texas Birthday Bash results – Staff will provide available results from the 2020 

Texas Birthday Bash. 

 

5.  Conduct a public hearing for the purpose of receiving public comment and 

testimony regarding a zoning change application submitted by James C 

Hassell for the properties located in the A0062 J Whitesides Abstract. The 

zoning change application requests to change the zoning from A/O: 

Agriculture/Open Space District to PUD Pecan Lakes Estates Phase 3, for the 

development of a 102.4197- acre single dwelling unit subdivision. The 

properties affected are legally described as A0062 J Whitesides, Tract 19, 

Acres 13.4696, A0062 J Whitesides, Tract 14-3, Acres 1.2275, A0062 J 

Whitesides, Tract 20-2, Acres 57.6204, A0062 J Whitesides, Tract 14-2, Acres 

43.9641, located in Navasota, Grimes County, Texas. 

Mr. Hassell filed a request to rezone 102.4197 Acres of land adjacent to the Pecan 

Lakes Estates subdivision.  The land is currently zoned Ag/Open.  Mr. Hassell is 

requesting rezoning the acreage to PUD Pecan Lakes Estates Phase III.  Mr. 

Hassell intends to expand the subdivision for more housing development. 

 



6.  Consideration and possible action on the first reading of Ordinance No. 919-

20, changing the current zoning from A/O: Agriculture/Open Space District 

to PUD Pecan Lakes Estates Phase 3, for the development of a 102.4197-acre 

single dwelling unit subdivision, the properties affected are legally described 

as A0062 J Whitesides, Tract 19, Acres 13.4696, A0062 J Whitesides, Tract 

14-3, Acres 1.2275, A0062 J Whitesides, Tract 20-2, Acres 57.6204, A0062 J 

Whitesides, Tract 14-2, Acres 43.9641, located in Navasota, Grimes County, 

Texas. 

Mr. Hassell filed a request to rezone 102.4197 Acres of land adjacent to the Pecan 

Lakes Estates subdivision.  The land is currently zoned Ag/Open.  Mr. Hassell is 

requesting rezoning the acreage to PUD Pecan Lakes Estates Phase III.  Mr. 

Hassell intends to expand the subdivision for more housing development. 

 

7.  Workshop and possible action on a capital improvements project for utilities 

and streets. 

 Staff, engineers and Financial Advisors have been working on a capital 

improvement project for utilities and streets.  Attached are several options, and all 

will create the need to increase the CIP fee attached to water and sewer.  If you 

decide to move forward with a project, we will then begin holding town hall 

meetings to inform citizens of the project and added fees.   

 

8.  Conduct a public hearing for the purpose of receiving public comment and 

testimony regarding amending Chapter 14 Zoning, Exhibit A Zoning 

Ordinance, Article XXI Building Permits, Certificates of Occupancy and 

Certificates of Compliance, 21.5 Site Plan Process, of the Code of Ordinances 

of the City of Navasota, Grimes County, Texas, adding GIS requirements to 

as-built plans. 

The City is working on improvements to the GIS mapping system.  This 

ordinance will help the City to create a layer on the map with the newly installed 

lines, which will enhance the mapping system that is currently in place. 

 

9.  Consideration and possible action on the first reading of Ordinance No. 920-

20, amending Chapter 14 Zoning, Exhibit A Zoning Ordinance, Article XXI 

Building Permits, Certificates of Occupancy and Certificates of Compliance, 

21.5 Site Plan Process, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Navasota, 

Grimes County, Texas, adding GIS requirements to as-built plans. 

The ordinance requires developers to include GIS mapping with their as-built-

plans.  The collection of this information will help enhance the GIS mapping of 

the City. 

 

10.  Conduct a public hearing for the purpose of receiving public comment and 

testimony regarding amending Chapter 10, Subdivision Regulation, Article 

10.02 Subdivision Ordinance, Exhibit A Subdivision Development, Article 7 

Requirements for Improvement, Section 7.08 Utilities, of the Code of 

Ordinances of the City of Navasota, Grimes County, Texas, regarding utility 

tap locations within utility easements and adding GIS requirements to as-



built plans. 

The City of Navasota has experienced a healthy growth pattern the last several 

years.  With the growth comes a need for added utilities.  Requests to install 

utilities in City rights-of-way are increasing, therefore there is a need to be able to 

regulate the installations and collect GIS line data for the City map. 

 

11.  Consideration and possible action on the first reading of Ordinance No. 921-

20, amending Chapter 10, Subdivision Regulation, Article 10.02 Subdivision 

Ordinance, Exhibit A Subdivision Development, Article 7 Requirements for 

Improvement, Section 7.08 Utilities, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of 

Navasota, Grimes County, Texas, regarding utility tap locations within 

utility easements and adding GIS requirements to as-built plans. 

The City of Navasota has experienced a healthy growth pattern the last several 

years.  With the growth comes a need for added utilities.  Requests to install 

utilities in City rights-of-way are increasing, therefore there is a need to be able to 

regulate the installations and collect GIS line data for the City map. 

 

12.  Discussion, consideration and possible action on sale of City owned 

properties legally described as Park Place, Block H, Lot 1, 2, located in 

Navasota, Grimes County, Texas, and method of sale. 

 Lot’s 1-2 Block H of Park Place subdivision are vacant lots owned by the City of 

Navasota.  Staff received an inquiry regarding the city selling the property.  Staff 

researched and determined there were no city owned utilities on the property, and 

there is not plan for the property.  Staff recommends selling the property by 

utilizing the sealed bid process.   

 

13.  Consent Agenda: The following items may be acted upon with one motion 

and vote. No separate discussion or action is necessary unless requested by 

the Mayor or a City Councilmember, in which event the item will be 

removed from the Consent Agenda for separate discussion and/or action by 

the City Council as part of the regular agenda. 

Consent Items Are: 

A. Consideration and possible action on the minutes for the month of February 

2020; 

B. Consideration and possible action on the expenditures for the month of 

February 2020; 

C. Consideration and possible action on the second reading of Ordinance No. 916-

20, amending Chapter 3, Article 3.06 Signs, Section 3.06.010 Permissible Signs 

and Requirements, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Navasota, Texas, 

regarding monument, banner, flag freeway/pole, freestanding, wall mounted and 

programmable signs; 

D. Consideration and possible action on the second reading of Ordinance No. 

917-20, adopting Wireless Telecommunication Facilities Regulations; and 

E. Consideration and possible action on the second reading of Ordinance No. 918-

20, amending the Uniform Right-of-Way management ordinance. 

 



 

Calendar of Events 

 

March 20th     TCMA Region 7 Meeting 

     TML Center Austin 

 

March 23rd     City Council Meeting 

6:00 p.m.     Municipal Building 

 

March 30th     TCMA Public Policy Task Force meeting 

9:00 a.m.    TML Center Austin  

 

April 3rd     TCMA Board Meeting 

     Buda, Texas 

 

April 13th     City Council Meeting 

6:00 p.m.    Municipal Building 

 

April 27th     City Council Meeting 

6:00 p.m.    Municipal Building 

 

 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

Brad Stafford 

City Manager 

 



 
 
 
 

Vision Statement: 
 

Navasota 2027:  What America Wants To Be 
“A beautiful, progressive, vibrant, service-oriented, 

close-knit community filled with 
historical charm and promise for people and business.” 

 
 

Mission Statement: 
 

“To guide Navasota’s growth in a way that maintains 
our heritage, culture, and uniqueness while 

maximizing our economic and social development.” 
 
 
 



 
 
 

THE CITY OF NAVASOTA 
COUNCIL LEADERSHIP POLICY 

 
 
It is the desire of the Navasota City Council to demonstrate responsible 
leadership by: 
 

(a) Establishing a 2027 Strategic Growth Map for the City of Navasota. 
 
(b) Assuring stable and effective city operations. 
 
(c) Developing and adopting policies that will guide the growth of the City 

of Navasota. 
 
(d) Facilitating private/public sector partnerships at the local, regional, 

state and federal level that will invest in the future of Navasota. 
 
(e) Ensuring all Navasota boards, commissions and committees are 

aligned with the Council’s growth policies. 



 
 

 979.846.4481     |     4444 Carter Creek Parkway, Ste. 110, Bryan, TX 77802     |     www.profacilitator.com 

S.M.A.R.T. GOAL SETTING SYSTEM 

Area Today’s Date Target Date Date Achieved 

City Council Retreat 10/2/19 2019-2020  
 

Goal Statement: A descriptive statement of the DESIRED OUTCOME. 
(a S.M.A.R.T. Goal is Specific, Measurable, Actionable, Responsible and Time-bound) 

 
The Management Connection, Inc. provided professional facilitation to the City of Navasota Council on 

September 4th, 2019. This document captures the Council’s direction to staff.  
 

 

Action Steps (List the specific actions you will take to achieve this goal) Target Date Who 
Percentage 
Completion 

Outcomes 

Direction from Council  
1. There needs to be a discussion on how to get 

state lawmakers to partner with the City.  
a. Potentially inviting Schwertner, 

Leman, and Kolkhorst to visit and 
tour the city  

b. Alan Bojorquez is creating a report 
card on all the legislature and looking 
for help 

2019-
2020 Navasota Staff  

2. Figure out a way to speed up the billing 
cycle to reduce the lag time from end of 
month to bill date for payments 

a. We can make every period longer or 
each period 31 days—it will take a 
few years, but you’ll catch up 

b. Propose a staff member under Lance 
and Rita to handle all meters—Meter 
Maintenance Technician 

2019-
2020 Navasota Staff  

3. The City Manager will do a cost benefit 
analysis on the Boys and Girls Club  

a. Benefit of having them in the 
community along with the mechanics 
of it to present to the council 

2019-
2020 Navasota Staff  



 
 

 979.846.4481     |     4444 Carter Creek Parkway, Ste. 110, Bryan, TX 77802     |     www.profacilitator.com 

4. The Council will move forward with the 
concept of bonds for utility and street 
improvements  

a. Bonds will be broken into three-year 
small increments 

i. Focus will be on high traffic 
roads first 

ii. Host community meetings to 
get more buy in from the city 

iii. City Manager will present the 
numbers to council 

2019-
2020 Navasota Staff  

5. Gather a proposal for a new look and cost of 
renovating fire station at the current 
location.  

a. A rendering needs to be created to 
show the public 

2019-
2020 Navasota Staff  

6. Review the Social Media policy (specifically 
# 3 & 4) as it relates to non-city employees 
and council members.  

a. It’s a developing area legally. We 
should review the policy because it’s 
from 2014 and make sure it’s in 
accordance with current situation. 

2019-
2020 Navasota Staff  

7. Design the new website  
a. Have 2-3 citizens sit in to consult 

about the ease of receiving 
notifications. Get a mixture of people 
who are and aren’t familiar with 
computers  

2019-
2020 Navasota Staff  

8. Find more ways to get coverage in the news 
a. neighbors@theeagle.com - send 

pictures to get included 

2019-
2020 Navasota Staff  

9. Develop relationships with Boards and 
Commissions: 

a. Have a mandatory annual meeting 
with members to talk about what a 
comp plan is, what the Council’s 
expectations are, and that they need 
to be able to make decisions as a 
board. They need to know about open 

2019-
2020 Navasota Staff  



 
 

 979.846.4481     |     4444 Carter Creek Parkway, Ste. 110, Bryan, TX 77802     |     www.profacilitator.com 

meetings act, public information act, 
Robert’s Rules of Order, ect.  

i. By being involved, we have a 
chance to educate them about 
how the city works  

ii. We don’t want to take away 
their ability to think, but we 
can give them parameters  

iii. We should create a statement 
to be read before each meeting 
that says “we are our own 
board, we work toward the 
goals of the city and will stand 
by the final decision”. It’s a 
reminder that we’re all here to 
do the best for the city. A 
mission statement to go at the 
top of the packet. 

 



ITEM: 

CITY OF NAVASOTA
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA

AGENDA ITEM NO.: 4. AGENDA DATE: March 9, 2020
 
PREPARED BY:
 
APPROVED BY: BS
 

Staff Report:

(a) Staff recognition for years of service;

(b) 2019 Texas Municipal League Awards;

(c) Drainage and parking lot project;

(d) Clean-up event ;

(e) Texas Birthday Bash results;

(f) Board and Commission update; and

(g) Reports from City Staff or City Officials regarding items of
community interests, including expressions of thanks,
congratulations or condolence; information regarding holiday
schedules; honorary or salutary recognition of public officials,
public employees, or other citizens; reminders about upcoming
events organized or sponsored by the City; information
regarding social, ceremonial, or community events organized or
sponsored by a non-City entity that is scheduled to be attended
by City officials or employees; and announcements involving
imminent threats to the public health and safety of people in
the City that has arisen after the posting of the agenda.
 

ITEM BACKGROUND:
 
 

BUDGETARY AND FINANCIAL SUMMARY:
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
 

Brad Stafford, City Manager



ATTACHMENTS:



ITEM: 

CITY OF NAVASOTA
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA

AGENDA ITEM NO.: 5. AGENDA DATE: March 9, 2020
 

PREPARED BY:

 
APPROVED BY: BS
 

Conduct a public hearing for the purpose of receiving
public comment and testimony regarding a zoning change
application submitted by James C Hassell for the properties
located in the A0062 J Whitesides Abstract. The zoning change
application requests to change the zoning from A/O:
Agriculture/Open Space District to PUD Pecan Lakes Estates
Phase 3, for the development of a 102.4197-acre single dwelling
unit subdivision. The properties affected are legally described as
A0062 J Whitesides, Tract 19, Acres 13.4696, A0062 J
Whitesides, Tract 14-3, Acres 1.2275, A0062 J Whitesides, Tract
20-2, Acres 57.6204, A0062 J Whitesides, Tract 14-2, Acres
43.9641, located in Navasota, Grimes County, Texas.
 

ITEM BACKGROUND:
On the 27th of January 2020, property owner James Hassell,
filed a petition with City staff requesting the rezoning of the
recently annexed 102.4197 acres from A/O: Agriculture/Open
Space District to PUD Pecan Lakes Estates Phase III. The
developer intends to expand the existing Pecan Lakes Estates
subdivision with a third phase.

Public hearing opened at _________p.m.

Public hearing closed at _________p.m.
 

BUDGETARY AND FINANCIAL SUMMARY:
none
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Lupe Diosdado, Community Development
Director



Staff recommends conducting a public hearing for the purpose of
receiving public comment and testimony regarding a zoning
change application submitted by James C Hassell for the
properties located in the A0062 J Whitesides Abstract. The
zoning change application requests to change the zoning from
A/O: Agriculture/Open Space District to PUD Pecan Lakes
Estates Phase 3, for the development of a 102.4197-acre single
dwelling unit subdivision. The properties affected are legally
described as A0062 J Whitesides, Tract 19, Acres 13.4696,
A0062 J Whitesides, Tract 14-3, Acres 1.2275, A0062 J
Whitesides, Tract 20-2, Acres 57.6204, A0062 J Whitesides,
Tract 14-2, Acres 43.9641, located in Navasota, Grimes County,
Texas.
 

ATTACHMENTS:
1. Staff Report
2. Concept Plan

http://174.127.112.94/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1582307107x_at.pdf
http://174.127.112.94/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1582307107x1_at.pdf


  
 

City of Navasota Planning and Zoning Commission 
Staff Report 

 

 
Date: February 12, 2020 
To:  Planning and Zoning Commission 
From:  Lupe Diosdado, Community Development Director 
Agenda Item: PUD Pecan Lakes Estates Phase III rezoning 
 
PROPERTY INFORMATION: 
 
PID: R15014 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION: A0062 J WHITESIDES, TRACT 19, ACRES 13.4696 
OWNER: HASSELL, JAMES C & DOROTHY 
ADDRESS: 8867 CR424, NAVASOTA, TX 77868 
ZONING: A/O 
 
PID: R75645 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION: A0062 J WHITESIDES, TRACT 14-3, ACRES 1.2275 
OWNER: MEAUX HASSELL LLC 
ADDRESS: n/a 
ZONING: A/O 
 
PID: R75958 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION: A0062 J WHITESIDES, TRACT 20-2, ACRES 57.6204 
OWNER: J & H NAVASOTA DEVELOPMENT, LLC 
ADDRESS: CR424, NAVASOTA, TX 77868 
ZONING: A/O 
 
PID: R75644 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION: A0062 J WHITESIDES, TRACT 14-2, ACRES 43.9641 
OWNER: J & H NAVASOTA DEVELOPMENT, LLC 
ADDRESS: n/a 
ZONING: A/O 
 
REQUEST: 
Conduct a public hearing for the purpose of receiving public comment and testimony regarding a zoning 
change application submitted by James C Hassell for the properties located in the A0062 J Whitesides 
Abstract. The zoning change application requests to change the zoning from A/O: Agriculture/Open 
Space District to PUD Pecan Lakes Estates Phase 3, for the development of a 102.4197-acre single 
dwelling unit subdivision. The properties affected are legally described as A0062 J Whitesides, Tract 19, 
Acres 13.4696, A0062 J Whitesides, Tract 14-3, Acres 1.2275, A0062 J Whitesides, Tract 20-2, Acres 
57.6204, A0062 J Whitesides, Tract 14-2, Acres 43.9641, located in Navasota, Grimes County, Texas. 



 
SUMMARY: 
On the 27th of January 2020, property owner James Hassell, filed a petition with City staff requesting 
the rezoning of the recently annexed 102.4197 acres from A/O: Agriculture/Open Space District to PUD 
Pecan Lakes Estates Phase III. The developer intends to expand the existing Pecan Lakes Estates 
subdivision with a third phase. 
 
The primary differences between Phase 2 and Phase 3’s concept plan are as follows: 
 

1. Patio homes were removed from the concept plan 
2. The minimum lot size was lowered from 7,000 to 6,000 sq. ft. 
3. The minimum lot width was lowered from 60 to 50 feet. 

 
* The Planned Unit Development Concept Plan for Pecan Lakes Estates Phase III is attached for your 
consideration. 
 
2015-2025 COMPREHENSIVE PLAN RELATION 
 
“ The most important step the City can take is to provide a framework that welcomes responsible and 
directed growth via planning and policy (Growth Management and Land Use Plan). Public input has 
indicated a strong need for more housing options in Navasota, such as multi-family, senior/garden 
homes, and a variety of single family residential options at all income levels.” Pg.103 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends holding a public hearing and approving the proposed zoning change. 
 
AERIAL / STREET VIEW: 

 



PUD:  Pecan Lakes Estates Phase III : Concept Plan  

 
Pecan Lakes Estates is proposed to provide a varied supply of housing options which are currently unmet in the 

Navasota housing market, while providing both residential and commercial growth opportunity in the Airport Growth 

Center of the community.  By providing traditional single-family units, the developer is assisting the community in 

fulfilling both economic development and housing goals as they are defined in the Navasota Comprehensive Plan.  The 

PUD (Planned Unit Development) approach, allows for some flexibility in both the platting and zoning, to accomplish a 

high quality residential development.   

 
Examples of Structures  

 

Single Dwelling Units 

1. Average Value ($200,000) 

 
 

 
 

 

 



 

Subdivision Homeowner’s Association 

Pecan Lakes Estates will have an HOA which will be responsible for public/common areas of the subdivision, 

regulate parking off of the street, provide for design covenant review/construction finishes.   

 

Permitted Uses  

1. Single dwelling units  

2. Temporary construction buildings for use incidental to permitted construction work on the premises.  Such 

buildings must be removed upon completion or abandonment of construction.    

3. Real Estate sales offices during the development of residential subdivisions, but not to exceed two (2) years. 

4. Accessory units, customarily incidental to the above uses, and located on the same lot not involving the conduct 

of retail business except as allowed by the Zoning Ordinance, and provided that any accessory structure shall be 

located not less than five (5) feet from any side or rear lot line. 

Conditional Uses 

1. Parkland and open space 

2. Water supply, sanitary sewer, storm sewer and similar utility facilities 

Prohibited Uses 

1. Uses that are not permitted uses or conditional uses. 

 
Development Standards 

1. Height Restrictions 
a. Thirty-five (35) feet high is the maximum height including roof gables, chimneys, vent stacks, or other 

mechanical equipment 
2. Building Setbacks 

a. Front setback 
i. Twenty-five (25) feet 

b. Rear setback 
i. Twenty (20) feet 

c. Side Setback 
i. On each side of a single dwelling unit having a width of not less than five feet.  When abutting a 

street, the minimum side setback shall be at least twenty (20) feet. 
3. Lot Dimensions 

a. Lot Area for Single Dwelling Unit minimum lot area shall be 6,000 square feet 
b. Lot Width for Single Dwelling Unit shall be a minimum of 50 feet wide 
c. Lot Depth shall average a minimum of 100 feet in depth between the side lot lines 

 
4. Density  

a. The maximum number of single dwelling units, shall not exceed 6 units per acre 
5. Parking 

a. Two on-site parking spaces per single dwelling shall be required 
 

6. Facades 
a. Front and Side exterior facades of the single dwelling units shall be constructed of 100% brick or stone 

masonry. 
 



7. Exterior Lighting 
a. All Street Lighting and Exterior Lighting of the dwellings shall be designed to direct light down onto the 

site and away from neighboring property.  Lighting shall be designed to include cut-off shielding to 
minimize light pollution. 
 

8. Landscape Standards 
a. Landscape designs shall be prepared to enhance the visual appeal of the built environment, screen 

undesirable views, strengthen the pedestrian scale, provide a buffer between auto and pedestrian 
environments, help define the site, provide congruency with the existing neighborhood, and break up 
large areas of hard surface. 

b. Re-naturalization of all areas disturbed by the construction of the site and buildings is required. Re-
naturalizing includes the following native plant materials: 

i. 5–10% Trees 
ii. 25–45% Shrubs (a minimum of 3 varieties encouraged) 

iii. 35–55% Grasses 
iv. 0–25% Forbs 

c. Development shall minimize potable water consumption for irrigation. Reductions can be attributed to 
any combination of the following items: 

i. Predominate use (greater than fifty (50) percent) native plant species. 
ii. Efficient irrigation systems (WaterSense labeled irrigation controllers, rain guards, check valves, 

drip irrigation, etc.). 
iii. Use of captured rainwater for irrigation. 

d. Where landscaping is intended to provide a visual screen, the species, quantity, maturity (size), and 
spacing of the initial plantings shall be sufficient to provide a functional screen within a single growing 
season. 

e. Landscaping shall be completed within one year of receiving building occupancy. Exceptions for weather 
delays to landscape completion may be considered. 

f. No evergreen tree with a mature width greater than twenty (20) feet shall be planted within fifteen (15) 
feet of a hardscaped area. 

9. Sidewalks 
a. Sidewalks shall be installed on one side of all public streets. 

 



ITEM: 

CITY OF NAVASOTA
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA

AGENDA ITEM NO.: 6. AGENDA DATE: March 9, 2020
 

PREPARED BY:

 
APPROVED BY: BS
 

Consideration and possible action on the first reading of
Ordinance No. 919-20, changing the current zoning from A/O:
Agriculture/Open Space District to PUD Pecan Lakes Estates
Phase 3, for the development of a 102.4197-acre single dwelling
unit subdivision, the properties affected are legally described as
A0062 J Whitesides, Tract 19, Acres 13.4696, A0062 J
Whitesides, Tract 14-3, Acres 1.2275, A0062 J Whitesides, Tract
20-2, Acres 57.6204, A0062 J Whitesides, Tract 14-2, Acres
43.9641, located in Navasota, Grimes County, Texas.
 

ITEM BACKGROUND:
On the 27th of January 2020, property owner James Hassell,
filed a petition with City staff requesting the rezoning of the
recently annexed 102.4197 acres from A/O: Agriculture/Open
Space District to PUD Pecan Lakes Estates Phase III. The
developer intends to expand the existing Pecan Lakes Estates
subdivision with a third phase.
 

BUDGETARY AND FINANCIAL SUMMARY:
none
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends approval of Ordinance No. 919-20, changing
the current zoning from A/O: Agriculture/Open Space District to
PUD Pecan Lakes Estates Phase 3, for the development of a
102.4197-acre single dwelling unit subdivision, the properties
affected are legally described as A0062 J Whitesides, Tract 19,
Acres 13.4696, A0062 J Whitesides, Tract 14-3, Acres 1.2275,
A0062 J Whitesides, Tract 20-2, Acres 57.6204, A0062 J
Whitesides, Tract 14-2, Acres 43.9641, located in Navasota,
Grimes County, Texas.

Lupe Diosdado, Community Development
Director



 

ATTACHMENTS:
1. Ordinance No. 919-20

http://174.127.112.94/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1583442548x_at.pdf


ORDINANCE NO.   919-20 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMEDNING THE OFFICIAL ZONING MAP OF THE 
CITY OF NAVASOTA, TEXAS TO REZONE 102.4197 ACRES, MORE 
PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS A0062 J WHITESIDES, TRACT 19, 
ACRES 13.4696, A0062 J WHITESIDES, TRACT 14-3, ACRES 1.2275, 
A0062 J WHITESIDES, TRACT 20-2, ACRES 57.6204, A0062 J 
WHITESIDES, TRACT 14-2, ACRES 43.9641, FROM A/O: 
AGRICULTURE/OPEN SPACE DISTRICT TO “PECAN LAKES ESTATES 
PHASE III PUD” A PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT; PROVIDING OR 
A SEVERABILIY CLAUSE; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE. 

 
WHEREAS, on the 27th of January 2020, property owner James Hassell, filed a 

petition requesting the rezoning of 102.4197 acres more particularly described as A0062 
J Whitesides, Tract 19, Acres 13.4696, A0062 J Whitesides, Tract 14-3, Acres 1.2275, 
A0062 J Whitesides, Tract 20-2, Acres 57.6204, A0062 J Whitesides, Tract 14-2, Acres 
43.9641, and legally described by metes and bounds on Exhibit “A” which is attached 
hereto and incorporated herein for all purposes pertinent, from A/O: Agriculture/Open 
Space District to “Pecan Lakes Estates Phase III PUD” a planned unit development to 
expand the existing residential subdivision Pecan Lakes Estates; and 
 

WHEREAS, the rezoning request is in harmony with the Comprehensive Plan of 
the City of Navasota; and 
 

WHEREAS, on the 27th of February 2020, a public hearing was held before the 
Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of Navasota, a quorum being present on 
the occasion and said matter of rezoning being part of the agenda for said Commission 
meeting, an opportunity to present arguments for and against the proposed rezoning 
was held; and 
 

WHEREAS, the properties are shown on Exhibit “B” attached hereto and 
incorporated herein for all purposes pertinent; and  
 

WHEREAS, the “Pecan Lakes Estates Phase III PUD: Concept Plan” is also 
attached hereto as Exhibit “C” and incorporated herein for all purposes pertinent, 
outlining the requirements and standards of the “Pecan Lakes Estates Phase III PUD” a 
Planned Unit Development; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission recommends to the City 
Council of the City of Navasota that it is in the best interest and to the benefit of the 
residents of the City of Navasota, that the said properties be rezoned from A/O 
Agriculture Open Space District to Pecan Lakes Estates Phase III PUD a Planned Unit 
Development; and 



 
WHEREAS, on the 9th day of March 2020, after notice as required by law, a 

public hearing was held before the Navasota City Council, a quorum being present on 
the occasion and said matter of rezoning being part of the agenda, an opportunity to 
present arguments for and against the proposed rezoning was held; 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF NAVASOTA, TEXAS THAT: 
 
SECTION 1. The Official Zoning Map of the City of Navasota is hereby amended to 
change the property legally described on Exhibit “A” and shown on Exhibit “B” from A/O 
Agriculture Open Space District to “Pecan Lakes Estates Phase III PUD” a Planned Unit 
Development. Unless otherwise provided for or modified by Exhibit “C”, the property 
located within the Pecan Lakes Estates Phase III PUD area shall conform to the 
provisions of the City’s Zoning Ordinance, Subdivision Ordinance and all other applicable 
ordinances. 
 
SECTION 2. If any section, subsection, word, sentence or phrase of this Ordinance is 
held invalid, it shall not affect the remaining parts of this Ordinance. 
 
SECTION 3. This Ordinance shall become effective from and after its passage, 
approval, and adoption on second reading. 
 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED ON FIRST READING THIS THE 9th DAY OF 
MARCH 2020. 
 
 
                                                                     _________________________ 
                                                                          BERT MILLER, MAYOR 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
___________________________________ 
SUSIE M. HOMEYER, CITY SECRETARY 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
PASSED AND ADOPTED ON SECOND READING THIS 23RD DAY OF 
MARCH 2020. 
 
 
 
                                                                       ______________________ 
                                                                            BERT MILLER, MAYOR 

 
 

ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
SUSIE M. HOMEYER, CITY SECRETARY 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

Exhibit “B” 

 

Pecan Lakes Estates Phase III 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

Exhibit “C” 

 

Pecan Lakes Estates Phase III PUD: Concept Plan 

 
Subdivision Homeowner’s Association 

Pecan Lakes Estates will have an HOA which will be responsible for public/common areas of the 

subdivision, regulate parking off of the street, provide for design covenant review/construction 

finishes.   

 

Permitted Uses  

1. Single dwelling units  

2. Temporary construction buildings for use incidental to permitted construction work on the 

premises.  Such buildings must be removed upon completion or abandonment of construction.    

3. Real Estate sales offices during the development of residential subdivisions, but not to exceed 

two (2) years. 

4. Accessory units, customarily incidental to the above uses, and located on the same lot not 

involving the conduct of retail business except as allowed by the Zoning Ordinance, and 

provided that any accessory structure shall be located not less than five (5) feet from any side or 

rear lot line. 

5. Parkland and open space 

6. Water supply, sanitary sewer, storm sewer and similar utility facilities 

Prohibited Uses 

1. Uses that are not listed as permitted uses. 

 
Development Standards 

1. Height Restrictions 
a. Thirty-five (35) feet high is the maximum height including roof gables, chimneys, vent 

stacks, or other mechanical equipment 
2. Building Setbacks 

a. Front setback 
i. Twenty-five (25) feet 

b. Rear setback 
i. Twenty (20) feet 

c. Side Setback 
i. On each side of a single dwelling unit having a width of not less than five feet.  

When abutting a street, the minimum side setback shall be at least twenty (20) 
feet. 

3. Lot Dimensions 
a. Lot Area for Single Dwelling Unit minimum lot area shall be 6,000 square feet 
b. Lot Width for Single Dwelling Unit shall be a minimum of 50 feet wide 
c. Lot Depth shall average a minimum of 100 feet in depth between the side lot lines 

 



4. Density  
a. The maximum number of single dwelling units, shall not exceed 6 units per acre 

5. Parking 
a. Two on-site parking spaces per single dwelling shall be required 

 
6. Facades 

a. Front and Side exterior facades of the single dwelling units shall be constructed of 100% 
brick or stone masonry. 
 

7. Exterior Lighting 
a. All Street Lighting and Exterior Lighting of the dwellings shall be designed to direct light 

down onto the site and away from neighboring property.  Lighting shall be designed to 
include cut-off shielding to minimize light pollution. 
 

8. Landscape Standards 
a. Landscape designs shall be prepared to enhance the visual appeal of the built 

environment, screen undesirable views, strengthen the pedestrian scale, provide a 
buffer between auto and pedestrian environments, help define the site, provide 
congruency with the existing neighborhood, and break up large areas of hard surface. 

b. Re-naturalization of all areas disturbed by the construction of the site and buildings is 
required. Re-naturalizing includes the following native plant materials: 

i. 5–10% Trees 
ii. 25–45% Shrubs (a minimum of 3 varieties encouraged) 

iii. 35–55% Grasses 
iv. 0–25% Forbs 

c. Development shall minimize potable water consumption for irrigation. Reductions can 
be attributed to any combination of the following items: 

i. Predominate use (greater than fifty (50) percent) native plant species. 
ii. Efficient irrigation systems (WaterSense labeled irrigation controllers, rain 

guards, check valves, drip irrigation, etc.). 
iii. Use of captured rainwater for irrigation. 

d. Where landscaping is intended to provide a visual screen, the species, quantity, maturity 
(size), and spacing of the initial plantings shall be sufficient to provide a functional 
screen within a single growing season. 

e. Landscaping shall be completed within one year of receiving building occupancy. 
Exceptions for weather delays to landscape completion may be considered. 

f. No evergreen tree with a mature width greater than twenty (20) feet shall be planted 
within fifteen (15) feet of a hardscaped area. 

 
9. Sidewalks 

a. Sidewalks shall be installed on at least one side of all public streets. 



ITEM: 

CITY OF NAVASOTA
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA

AGENDA ITEM NO.: 7. AGENDA DATE: March 9, 2020
 
PREPARED BY:
 
APPROVED BY: BS
 

Workshop and possible action on a capital improvements
project for utilities and streets.
 

ITEM BACKGROUND:
Staff is working with Bleyl Engineering and U.S. Capital Advisors
to develop a feasible capital improvement project for utilities
and streets.  A presentation is being created to provide options
for the proposed project.
 

BUDGETARY AND FINANCIAL SUMMARY:
 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends the City Council determine the size of the
proposed project and method of financing to utilize.
 

ATTACHMENTS:
1. CIP Information

Brad Stafford, City Manager

http://174.127.112.94/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1583359159x_at.pdf




























































ITEM: 

CITY OF NAVASOTA
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA

AGENDA ITEM NO.: 8. AGENDA DATE: March 9, 2020
 

PREPARED BY:

 
APPROVED BY: BS
 

Conduct a public hearing for the purpose of receiving
public comment and testimony regarding amending Chapter 14
Zoning, Exhibit A Zoning Ordinance, Article XXI Building Permits,
Certificates of Occupancy and Certificates of Compliance, 21.5
Site Plan Process, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of
Navasota, Grimes County, Texas, adding GIS requirements to
as-built plans.
 

ITEM BACKGROUND:
In an effort to improve GIS mapping services staff is requesting
to add GIS line data as a requirement to be included in all as-
built plans when private or public projects are completed. By
requiring GIS line data City staff will be able to add additional
GIS layers and improve existing layers.

Public hearing opened at _______ p.m.

Public hearing closed at _______ p.m.
 

BUDGETARY AND FINANCIAL SUMMARY:
none
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends conducting a public hearing for the purpose of
receiving public comment and testimony regarding amending
Chapter 14 Zoning, Exhibit A Zoning Ordinance, Article XXI
Building Permits, Certificates of Occupancy and Certificates of
Compliance, 21.5 Site Plan Process, of the Code of Ordinances
of the City of Navasota, Grimes County, Texas, adding GIS
requirements to as-built plans.
 

Lupe Diosdado, Community Development
Director



ATTACHMENTS:
1. Staff Report

http://174.127.112.94/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1582307273x_at.pdf


  
 

City of Navasota Planning and Zoning Commission 
Staff Report 

 

 
Date: February 3, 2020 
To:  Planning and Zoning Commission 
From:  Lupe Diosdado, Community Development Director  
Agenda Item: Site Plan GIS requirements  
 
REQUEST: 
Conduct a public hearing for the purpose of receiving public comment and testimony regarding 
amending Chapter 14 Zoning, Exhibit A Zoning Ordinance, Article XXI Building Permits, Certificates of 
Occupancy and Certificates of Compliance, 21.5 Site Plan Process, of the Code of Ordinances of the City 
of Navasota, Grimes County, Texas, adding GIS requirements to as-built plans. 
 
SUMMARY: 
The implementation of GIS mapping technology for the City of Navasota has resulted in better planning 
for private and public improvement projects, 811 locate services and site selection processes for both 
residential and commercial development. The most recent efforts being mapping the entire City’s storm 
drain system. 
 
In an effort to further leverage GIS mapping services staff  is requesting to add GIS line data as a 
requirement to be included in all as-built plans when private or public projects are completed. By 
requiring GIS line data City staff will be able to add additional layers and improve existing layers already 
available. 
 
Chapter 14 Zoning, Article XXI building permits, certificates of occupancy and certificates of compliance, 
21.5 site plan process, C-4, is hereby amended by adding subsection (o) to read as follows: 
o)     As part of the “as built” plans the developer shall submit to the City GIS line data showing GPS 
accurate locations of sewer, water, gas, and storm main/service lines and taps installed within any 
rights-of-way or public utility easements for GIS mapping purposes. 
 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN RELATION: 
“A digital Navasota is an effective 
Navasota. 
Navasota has undergone a robust effort to digitize its built infrastructure via GIS locating of assets. 
These endeavors are vital and can be expanded to encompass more assets and services targeting 
specific delivery groups, policing and EMS, traffic control, or any number of trackable physical assets or 
services.” 2015-2025-Comprehensive Plan Pg. 25 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends conducting a public hearing and approving the proposed amendment adding GIS line 
data requirements to as-built plans. 



ITEM: 

CITY OF NAVASOTA
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA

AGENDA ITEM NO.: 9. AGENDA DATE: March 9, 2020
 

PREPARED BY:

 
APPROVED BY: BS
 

Consideration and possible action on the first reading of
Ordinance No. 920-20, amending Chapter 14 Zoning, Exhibit A
Zoning Ordinance, Article XXI Building Permits, Certificates of
Occupancy and Certificates of Compliance, 21.5 Site Plan
Process, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Navasota,
Grimes County, Texas, adding GIS requirements to as-built
plans.
 

ITEM BACKGROUND:
In an effort to improve GIS mapping services staff is requesting
to add GIS line data as a requirement to be included in all as-
built plans when private or public projects are completed. By
requiring GIS line data City staff will be able to add additional
GIS layers and improve existing layers.
 

BUDGETARY AND FINANCIAL SUMMARY:
none
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends approval of the first reading of Ordinance No.
920-20, amending Chapter 14 Zoning, Exhibit A Zoning
Ordinance, Article XXI Building Permits, Certificates of
Occupancy and Certificates of Compliance, 21.5 Site Plan
Process, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Navasota,
Grimes County, Texas, adding GIS requirements to as-built
plans.
 

ATTACHMENTS:
1. Ordinance No. 920-20

Lupe Diosdado, Community Development
Director

http://174.127.112.94/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1583185726x_at.pdf


ORDINANCE NO. 920-20 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
NAVASOTA, TEXAS, AMENDING CHAPTER 14 ZONING, 
EXHIBIT A ZONING ORDINANCE, ARTICLE XXI BUILDING 
PERMITS, CERTIFICATES OF OCCUPANCY AND 
CERTIFICATES OF COMPLIANCE, 21.5 SITE PLAN PROCESS, 
OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF NAVASOTA, 
TEXAS; PROVIDING FOR A SEVERABILITY AND REPEALER 
CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE; AND 
FINDING PROPER NOTICE OF MEETING. 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Navasota (“City”) is a Texas home-rule 
municipality; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Texas Local Government Code, Section 51.001, 
the City has the authority to adopt ordinances and regulations for the 
good government, peace and order of the City; and 

WHEREAS, as a home-rule municipality, Texas Local Government Code, 
Section 51.072 confirms that the City has the full power of local self-
government; and 

WHEREAS, the City Zoning Ordinance (“Zoning Ordinance”) includes 
provisions outlining public hearing and notification requirements; and 

WHEREAS, all notification and public hearing requirements have been 
satisfied in accordance with state law and the City’s Code of Ordinances; 
and  

WHEREAS, the City desires to amend site plan submittal requirements in 
the Zoning Ordinance; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council finds and determines that it is in the best 
interest of the City to adopt the regulations as set forth herein; 

 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of 
Navasota, Texas that: 

SECTION 1. FINDINGS INCORPORATED 
 
The findings set forth above are incorporated into the body of this Ordinance as 
if fully set forth herein. 
 



SECTION 1. Chapter 14 Zoning, Article XXI building permits, certificates of 
occupancy and certificates of compliance, 21.5 site plan process, C-4, is hereby 
amended by adding subsection (o) to read as follows: 
 
o) As part of the “as built” plans the developer shall submit to the City GIS line 
data showing GPS accurate locations of sewer, water, gas, and storm 
main/service lines and taps installed within any rights-of-way or public utility 
easements for GIS mapping purposes. 
 
 
SECTION 2. CUMULATIVE EFFECT  
This Ordinance shall be cumulative of all laws of the State of Texas and the 
United States governing the subject matter of this Ordinance, now existing or as 
hereafter amended.  
 
SECTION 3. SEVERABILITY CLAUSE 
It is hereby declared to be the intention of the City Council that the phrases, 
clauses, sentences, paragraphs and sections of this Ordinance are severable, and 
if any phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance shall be 
declared unconstitutional or invalid by the valid judgment or decree of any court 
of competent jurisdiction, such unconstitutionality or invalidity shall not affect 
any of the remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs and sections of 
this Ordinance, since the same would have been enacted by the City Council 
without the incorporation of this Ordinance of any such unconstitutional or 
invalid phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section. 
 
SECTION 4. REPEALER CLAUSE 
Any provision of any prior ordinance of the City whether codified or uncodified, 
which are in conflict with any provision of this Ordinance, are hereby repealed to 
the extent of the conflict, but all other provisions of the ordinances of the City 
whether codified or uncodified, which are not in conflict with the provisions of 
this Ordinance, shall remain in full force and effect. 
 
SECTION 5. EFFECTIVE DATE 
This Ordinance shall become effective from and after its passage, approval and 
adoption on second reading, and its publication as may be required by law. 
 
SECTION 6. NOTICE OF MEETING 
Notice of the time and place, where and when said Ordinance would be 
considered by the City Council at a public meeting was given in accordance with 
applicable law, prior to the time designated for meeting.  
 

 
 



PASSED ON FIRST READING THIS THE 9TH DAY OF MARCH, 2020. 
 
 
                    _________________________ 
                                                                  BERT MILLER, MAYOR 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
________________________________ 
SUSIE M. HOMEYER, CITY SECRETARY 
 
 
 
PASSED ON SECOND READING THIS THE 23RD DAY OF MARCH, 2020. 
                  
 
                                                             __________________________ 
                                                                   BERT MILLER, MAYOR 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
________________________________ 
SUSIE M. HOMEYER, CITY SECRETARY 



ITEM: 

CITY OF NAVASOTA
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA

AGENDA ITEM NO.: 10. AGENDA DATE: March 9, 2020
 

PREPARED BY:

 
APPROVED BY: BS
 

Conduct a public hearing for the purpose of receiving
public comment and testimony regarding amending Chapter 10,
Subdivision Regulation, Article 10.02 Subdivision Ordinance,
Exhibit A Subdivision Development, Article 7 Requirements for
Improvement, Section 7.08 Utilities, of the Code of Ordinances
of the City of Navasota, Grimes County, Texas, regarding utility
tap locations within utility easements and adding GIS
requirements to as-built plans.
 

ITEM BACKGROUND:
The City of Navasota continues to see an increase in residential
subdivision development. Feedback from the Public Works
Department and local electric utility providers produced ideas on
on how to improve response to requests for new utilities
installed within public utility easements. The leading motivators
behind the suggested changes are safety and uniformity.

Also, in an effort to improve GIS mapping services staff
proposes  requiring GIS line data of utility mains and service
lines be included in all as-built plans when private or public
projects are completed. By requiring GIS line data City staff will
be able to add additional GIS layers and improve existing layers.

Public hearing opened at ______ p.m.

Public hearing closed at ______ p.m.
 

BUDGETARY AND FINANCIAL SUMMARY:
none
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Lupe Diosdado, Community Development
Director



Staff recommends holding a public hearing for the purpose of
receiving public comment and testimony regarding amending
Chapter 10, Subdivision Regulation, Article 10.02 Subdivision
Ordinance, Exhibit A Subdivision Development, Article 7
Requirements for Improvement, Section 7.08 Utilities, of the
Code of Ordinances of the City of Navasota, Grimes County,
Texas, regarding utility tap locations within utility easements
and adding GIS requirements to as-built plans.

 

ATTACHMENTS:
1. Staff Report

http://174.127.112.94/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1582307382x_at.pdf


  
 

City of Navasota Planning and Zoning Commission 
Staff Report 

 

 
Date: February 3, 2020 
To:  Planning and Zoning Commission 
From:  Lupe Diosdado, Community Development Director  
Agenda Item # Subdivision Utility Tap Locations and GIS Mapping Requirements 
 
REQUEST: 
Conduct a public hearing for the purpose of receiving public comment and testimony regarding 
amending Chapter 10, Subdivision Regulation, Article 10.02 Subdivision Ordinance, Exhibit A Subdivision 
Development, Article 7 Requirements for Improvement, Section 7.08 Utilities, of the Code of Ordinances 
of the City of Navasota, Grimes County, Texas, regarding utility tap locations within utility easements 
and adding GIS requirements to as-built plans. 
 
SUMMARY: 
The City of Navasota continues to see an increase in residential subdivision development. City staff has 
received feedback from the Public Works Department and local electric utility providers on how to 
better regulate underground utilities installed within public utility easements. The leading motivators 
behind the suggested changes are safety and uniformity.  
 
One area of concern is the proximity of high voltage underground electric mains to water, sewer and 
natural gas service line tie-in taps. To improve safety the proposed regulations maximize the distance 
between the underground electric lines and the taps where contractors and Public Works staff excavate 
in order to connect the service lines to new homes. With the proposed regulations the end of tie-in taps 
can be up to eleven (11) feet or away from underground electric lines. 
 
Sanitary sewer service lines must be a minimum of 6” when servicing two homes/buildings. 
 
Additional requirements for meter boxes ensure they will not be buried by topsoil during construction 
causing interference with the Public Works metering SCADA wireless system. 
 
Lastly, an effort to further leverage GIS mapping services staff  is requesting to add GIS line data of utility 
mains and service lines as a requirement to be included in all as-built plans when private or public 
projects are completed. By requiring GIS line data City staff will be able to add additional layers and 
improve existing layers already available. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends holding a public hearing and approving the proposed regulations regulating utility tap 
locations and requiring GIS line data of utility mains and service lines. 
 
 



 
Proposed Amendment 
7.08.04 Utility Location Standards: When a development necessitates the installation of public utility 
improvements all taps must be installed within a utility easement and constructed as set forth below: 
 
A. All taps and sanitary sewer cleanouts must terminate at the end of the utility easement furthest 
from the street right-of-way when the utility easement is located in the front and furthest from the 
right-of-way/alley when the utility easement is located at the rear of the property. (Refer to Exhibit “1”) 
 
B. All taps must be installed within 4 feet of side lot lines. 
 
C. Sanitary sewer taps installed for dual service must be 6” minimum. 
 
D. Top of water meter boxes containing water taps must be at minimum .5” above final grade. 
 

 



 



ITEM: 

CITY OF NAVASOTA
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA

AGENDA ITEM NO.: 11. AGENDA DATE: March 9, 2020
 

PREPARED BY:

 
APPROVED BY: BS
 

Consideration and possible action on the first reading of
Ordinance No. 921-20, amending Chapter 10, Subdivision
Regulation, Article 10.02 Subdivision Ordinance, Exhibit A
Subdivision Development, Article 7 Requirements for
Improvement, Section 7.08 Utilities, of the Code of Ordinances
of the City of Navasota, Grimes County, Texas, regarding utility
tap locations within utility easements and adding GIS
requirements to as-built plans.
 

ITEM BACKGROUND:
The City of Navasota continues to see an increase in residential
subdivision development. Feedback from the Public Works
Department and local electric utility providers produced ideas on
how to improve response to requests for new underground
utilities installed within public utility easements. The leading
motivators behind the suggested changes are safety and
uniformity.

Also, in an effort to improve GIS mapping services staff
proposes requiring GIS line data of utility mains and service
lines as a requirement to be included in all as-built plans when
private or public projects are completed. By requiring GIS line
data City staff will be able to add additional GIS layers and add-
on to existing layers.
 

BUDGETARY AND FINANCIAL SUMMARY:
none
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Lupe Diosdado, Community Development
Director



Staff recommends approval of the first reading of Ordinance No.
921-20, amending Chapter 10, Subdivision Regulation, Article
10.02 Subdivision Ordinance, Exhibit A Subdivision Development,
Article 7 Requirements for Improvement, Section 7.08 Utilities,
of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Navasota, Grimes
County, Texas, regarding utility tap locations within utility
easements and adding GIS requirements to as-built plans.
 

ATTACHMENTS:
1. Ordinance No. 921-20

http://174.127.112.94/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1583186020x_at.pdf


ORDINANCE NO. 921-20 
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NAVASOTA, 
TEXAS, AMENDING CHAPTER 10, SUBDIVISION REGULATION, ARTICLE 
10.02 SUBDIVISION ORDINANCE, EXHIBIT A SUBDIVISION 
DEVELOPMENT, ARTICLE 7 REQUIREMENTS FOR IMPROVEMENT, 
SECTION 7.08 UTILITIES, OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY 
OF NAVASOTA, TEXAS REGARDING UTILITY TAP LOCATIONS WITHIN 
EASEMENTS; PROVIDING FOR A SEVERABILITY AND REPEALER 
CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE; AND FINDING PROPER 
NOTICE OF MEETING 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Navasota (“City”) is a Texas home-rule 

municipality; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Texas Local Government Code, Section 51.001, 
the City Council of the City of Navasota (“City Council”) has the authority to 
adopt ordinances and regulations for the good government, peace and order of 
the City; and 

WHEREAS, as a home-rule municipality, Texas Local Government Code, 
Section 51.072 confirms that the City has the full power of local self-government; 
and 

WHEREAS, the City’s Subdivision Ordinance currently regulates utilities 
but does not regulate the location of utility taps or require utility location data be 
submitted for GIS mapping; and 

WHEREAS, the City desires the regulation of utility taps within easements 
in the City; and 

WHEREAS, the City desires that certain utility location data be submitted 
for GIS mapping purposes; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council finds and determines that it is in the best 
interest of the City to adopt the regulations as set forth herein; 
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of 
Navasota, Texas that: 

SECTION 1. FINDINGS INCORPORATED 
 
The findings set forth above are incorporated into the body of this ordinance as if 
fully set forth herein. 
 
 



SECTION 2.  
 
Chapter 10 Subdivision Regulation, Article 10.02 Subdivision Ordinance, Exhibit A 
Subdivision Development Ordinance, Article 7 Requirements for Improvements, 
Reservations, and Design, Section 7.08 Utilities of the Code of Ordinances, City 
of Navasota, Texas is hereby amended by adding subsection 7.08.04 and 7.08.05 
to read as follows: 
 
7.08.04  Utility Location Standards: When a development necessitates the 
installation of public utility improvements all taps must be installed within a utility 
easement and constructed as set forth below: 
 

A. All taps and sanitary sewer cleanouts must terminate at the end of the 
utility easement furthest from the street right-of-way when the utility 
easement is located in the front and furthest from the right-of-way/alley 
when the utility easement is located at the rear of the property. (Refer to 
Exhibit “1”) 
 

B. All taps must be installed within 4 feet of side lot lines. 
 

C. Sanitary sewer taps installed for dual service must be 6” minimum. 
 

D. Top of water meter boxes containing water taps must be at minimum .5” 
above final grade. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 

Exhibit “1” 
 

 
 



 
 
7.08.05 Underground Public Improvements: As part of the “as built” plans 
the developer shall submit to the City GIS line data showing GPS accurate 
locations of sewer, water, gas, and storm main lines and service lines installed 
within any rights-of-way or public utility easements for GIS mapping purposes. 
 
SECTION 3. CUMULATIVE EFFECT  
This Ordinance shall be cumulative of all laws of the State of Texas and the 
United States governing the subject matter of this Ordinance, now existing or as 
hereafter amended.  
 
SECTION 4. SEVERABILITY CLAUSE 
It is hereby declared to be the intention of the City Council that the phrases, 
clauses, sentences, paragraphs and sections of this Ordinance are severable, and 
if any phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance shall be 
declared unconstitutional or invalid by the valid judgment or decree of any court 
of competent jurisdiction, such unconstitutionality or invalidity shall not affect 



any of the remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs and sections of 
this Ordinance, since the same would have been enacted by the City Council 
without the incorporation of this Ordinance of any such unconstitutional or 
invalid phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section. 
 
SECTION 5. REPEALER CLAUSE 
Any provision of any prior ordinance of the City whether codified or uncodified, 
which are in conflict with any provision of this Ordinance, are hereby repealed to 
the extent of the conflict, but all other provisions of the ordinances of the City 
whether codified or uncodified, which are not in conflict with the provisions of 
this Ordinance, shall remain in full force and effect. 
 
SECTION 6. EFFECTIVE DATE 
This Ordinance shall become effective from and after its passage, approval and 
adoption on second reading, and its publication as may be required by law. 
 
SECTION 7. NOTICE OF MEETING 
Notice of the time and place, where and when said Ordinance would be 
considered by the City Council at a public meeting was given in accordance with 
applicable law, prior to the time designated for meeting.  
 
PASSED ON FIRST READING THIS THE  9TH DAY OF MARCH, 2020. 
 
 
                      ___________________________ 
                                                                     BERT MILLER, MAYOR 
ATTEST: 
 
 
________________________________ 
SUSIE M. HOMEYER, CITY SECRETARY 
 
 
PASSED ON SECOND READING THIS THE 23RD DAY OF MARCH, 2020. 
                  
 
                                                             ______________________________ 
                                                                       BERT MILLER, MAYOR 
ATTEST: 
 
 
________________________________ 
SUSIE M. HOMEYER, CITY SECRETARY 
 



ITEM: 

CITY OF NAVASOTA
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA

AGENDA ITEM NO.: 12. AGENDA DATE: March 9, 2020
 

PREPARED BY:

 
APPROVED BY: BS
 

Discussion, consideration and possible action on sale of
City owned properties legally described as Park Place, Block H,
Lot 1, 2, located in Navasota, Grimes County, Texas, and
method of sale.
 

ITEM BACKGROUND:
Staff was contacted by Omar Olvera, 711 Park Street Navasota,
TX regarding two city owned lots located to the west of Hipolito
Olvera's property, his father. Mr. Olvera is interested in
purchasing the lots from the City. 

Per legal counsel if City Council decides to sell the properties it
can be done 1 of 3 ways, brokerage sale, public auction or
sealed bid.
 

BUDGETARY AND FINANCIAL SUMMARY:
Grimes County Appraisal District's appraised value for both lots
combined is $8,800
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends approval of sale of property by utilizing the
sealed bid method.
 

ATTACHMENTS:
1. Aerial Map

Lupe Diosdado, Community Development
Director

http://174.127.112.94/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1582829022x_at.pdf


PARK PLACE, BLOCK H, LOT 1,2 

 

The parcel highlighted in red are the City owned lots. The parcel highlighted in blue belongs to Hipolito 

Olvera the interested buyer. 



ITEM: 

CITY OF NAVASOTA
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA

AGENDA ITEM NO.: 13. AGENDA DATE: March 9, 2020
 
PREPARED BY:
 
APPROVED BY: BS
 

Consent Agenda: The following items may be acted upon
with one motion and vote. No separate discussion or action is
necessary unless requested by the Mayor or a City
Councilmember, in which event the item will be removed from
the Consent Agenda for separate discussion and/or action by the
City Council as part of the regular agenda.

Consent Items Are:

A. Consideration and possible action on the minutes for the
month of February, 2020;

B. Consideration and possible action on the expenditures for the
month of February, 2020;

C. Consideration and possible action on the second reading of
Ordinance No. 916-20, amending Chapter 3, Article 3.06 Signs,
Section 3.06.010 Permissible Signs and Requirements, of the
Code of Ordinances of the City of Navasota, Texas, regarding
monument, banner, flag freeway/pole, freestanding, wall
mounted and programmable signs;

D. Consideration and possible action on the second reading of
Ordinance No. 917-20, adopting W ireless Telecommunication
Facilities Regulations; and

E. Consideration and possible action on the second reading of
Ordinance No. 918-20, amending the Uniform Right-of-Way
management ordinance.

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Susie M. Homeyer, City Secretary



Staff recommends approval of the consent agenda items which
include the minutes and expenditures for the month of February
2020; the second reading of Ordinance No. 916-20, amending
Chapter 3, Article 3.06 Signs, Section 3.06.010 Permissible Signs
and Requirements, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of
Navasota, Texas, regarding monument, banner, flag
freeway/pole, freestanding, wall mounted and programmable
sings; the second reading of Ordinance No. 917-20, adopting
W ireless Telecommunication Facilities Regulations; and the
second reading of Ordinance No. 918-20, amending the Uniform
Right-of-Way management ordinance.
 

ATTACHMENTS:
1. Minutes - 02/10/2020
2. Minutes - 02/24/2020
3. Expenditures for February 2020
4. Ordinance No. 916-20
5. Ordinance No. 917-20
6. Ordinance No. 918-20

http://174.127.112.94/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1583187922x_at.pdf
http://174.127.112.94/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1583187947x_at.pdf
http://174.127.112.94/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1583187985x_at.pdf
http://174.127.112.94/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1583529445x_at.pdf
http://174.127.112.94/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1583528734x_at.pdf
http://174.127.112.94/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1583531791x_at.pdf


MINUTES 

REGULAR MEETING 

FEBRUARY 10, 2020 

 

The City Council of the City of Navasota, Grimes County, Texas met at the City Council 

Chambers, Room No. 161, located at 200 E. McAlpine Street at 6:00 p.m., Navasota, Texas on 

the above date with the following being present: 

 

Bernie Gessner, Councilmember, Place # 1 

Geoff Horn, Councilmember, Place # 2 

Josh M. Fultz, Councilmember, Place # 3 

Bert Miller, Mayor, Place # 4 

Grant E. Holt, Mayor Pro-Tem, Place # 5 

 

Thus constituting a quorum. 

 

STAFF PRESENT:  Brad Stafford, City Manager; Susie M. Homeyer, City Secretary; Lance Hall, 

Finance Director; Lupe Diosdado, Community Development Director; Hung Mai, IT Specialist; 

Kathrine Thogersen, Administrative Assistant/Deputy City Secretary; Michael Mize, Lieutenant; 

Shawn Myatt, Police Chief/Assistant City Manager; Jason Katkoski, Fire Chief/EMC; Edwin 

Sandoval, Truck Driver; Madison Brooks, Marketing and Communication Coordinator; Jose 

Coronilla, Director of Streets and Sanitation; Pat Gruner, Municipal Judge; Rochelle Jessie, 

Municipal Court Clerk; Bran Bobo II, Street Maintenance Worker and Jose Martinez, Heavy 

Equipment Operator. 

 

VISITORS:  Connie Clements, Deborah Richardson, Andrea Perrard, Arlo Roberson, Philip Cox, 

Pattie Pederson, B. J. Gruner and Rebecca Dias. 

 

THE ITEMS ON THE AGENDA WERE TAKEN UP IN DUE ORDER AS FOLLOWS: 

 

1.  Mayor Bert Miller called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 

 

2.  Invocation was given by Pastor Arlo Roberson.  The City Council, staff members and 

visitors then recited the Pledge of Allegiance to the American Flag and the Texas Flag. 

 

3.  Remarks of visitors:  Citizen Deborah Richardson, on behalf of the Two Rivers 

Foundation, invited the City Council to an event at the Navasota Center on February 18, 

2020 at 7:00 p.m. called, Grimes County, A Journey in Time. 

 

 

 

 



4.  Staff report: 

 

(a) Director of Streets and Sanitation Jose Coronilla updated the City Council on the 

City-Wide Clean up event; 

 

(b) City Manager Brad Stafford gave an update on the Downtown Drainage and Parking 

Lot project;  

 

(c) Marketing and Communication Coordinator Madison Brooks gave an update on the 

Texas Birthday Bash; 

 

(d) Police Chief/Assistant City Manager Shawn Myatt gave an update on the Police 

Department events coming up; 

 

(e) Director of Streets and Sanitation Jose Coronilla introduced his new employees; 

  

(f) Councilmember Josh Fultz gave an update on the latest Board of Adjustment 

meeting; 

 

(g) Councilmembers and staff informed the audience about upcoming events. 

 

5.  Mayor Pro-Tem Grant Holt moved to approve the first reading of Ordinance No. 915-20, 

amending Chapter 7, Municipal Court, Article 7.02, Fees, Costs and Special Expenses 

and repealing Section 7.02.002 Technology Fund and Section 7.02.003 Building 

Security Fund, seconded by Councilmember Geoff Horn and with each Councilmember 

voting AYE, the motion carried. 

 

6.  A discussion was held on hosting a new session of Navasota Citizens University.  It was 

the consensus of the City Council to host another session. 

 

7.  Mayor Pro-Tem Grant Holt moved to delegate the authority to the City Manager to 

approve the bid amount submitted by the City for a sealed bid on a used firetruck to 

Montgomery Count ESD # 2, seconded by Councilmember Bernie Gessner and with 

each Councilmember voting AYE, the motion carried. 

 

8. Councilmember Bernie Gessner moved to approve the order of election for the May 2, 

2020 election to elect three City Councilmembers to Positions 1, 2 and 3, seconded by 

Councilmember Josh Fultz and with each Councilmember voting AYE, the motion 

carried. 

 



9.  Councilmember Josh Fultz moved to appoint Chyna Walker to the Navasota Housing 

Authority Board, seconded by Geoff Horn and with each Councilmember voting AYE, 

the motion carried. 

 

10. Councilmember Bernie Gessner moved to approve the consent agenda items which 

include the minutes and the expenditures for the month of January 2020 and the 

second reading of Ordinance No. 914-20, authorizing participation with other Entergy 

Service Area Cities in matters concerning Entergy Texas, Inc. at the Public Utility 

Commission of Texas in 2020 and the hiring of lawyers and rate experts, seconded by 

Councilmember Josh Fultz and with each Councilmember voting AYE, the motion 

carried. 

 

11. Mayor Bert Miller adjourned the meeting at 6:40 p.m. 

  

 

                                                  ______________________________ 

                                                           BERT MILLER, MAYOR 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_______________________________ 

SUSIE M. HOMEYER, CITY SECRETARY 



MINUTES 

REGULAR MEETING 

FEBRUARY 24, 2020 

 

The City Council of the City of Navasota, Grimes County, Texas met at the City Council 

Chambers, Room No. 161, located at 200 E. McAlpine Street at 6:00 p.m., Navasota, Texas on 

the above date with the following being present: 

 

Bernie Gessner, Councilmember, Place # 1 

Geoff Horn, Councilmember, Place # 2 

Josh M. Fultz, Councilmember, Place # 3 

Bert Miller, Mayor, Place # 4 

Grant E. Holt, Mayor Pro-Tem, Place # 5 

 

Thus constituting a quorum. 

 

STAFF PRESENT:  Brad Stafford, City Manager; Susie M. Homeyer, City Secretary; Lance Hall, 

Finance Director; Lupe Diosdado, Community Development Director; Hung Mai, IT Specialist; 

Kathrine Thogersen, Administrative Assistant/Deputy City Secretary; Michael Mize, Lieutenant; 

Shawn Myatt, Police Chief/Assistant City Manager; Jason Katkoski, Fire Chief/EMC; Madison 

Brooks, Marketing and Communication Coordinator; Jose Coronilla, Director of Streets and 

Sanitation; Pat Gruner, Municipal Judge; Julie Harper, Utility Billing Manager; Cary Bovey, Legal 

Counsel; Jeff Greer, Utility Director; Allen Somers, Meter Technician; Joe Munoz, Gas 

Technician; and Xavier Adams, Police Officer. 

 

VISITORS:  David Aguilar, Connie Clements, Mona Somers, Arlo Roberson, Deborah 

Richardson, Andrea Perrard, B. J. Gruner, Pattie Pederson, Randy Peters and Abraham Grifaldo. 

 

THE ITEMS ON THE AGENDA WERE TAKEN UP IN DUE ORDER AS FOLLOWS: 

 

1.  Mayor Bert Miller called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 

 

2.  Invocation was given by Pastor Arlo Roberson.  The City Council, staff members and 

visitors then recited the Pledge of Allegiance to the American Flag and the Texas Flag 

led by Boy Scout Abraham Grifaldo. 

 

3.  Remarks of visitors:  None. 

 

4.  Staff report: 

 

(a) City Manager Brad Stafford gave an update on the 1st quarter report for 2020 for the 

Arts Council; 



(b) Director of Utilities Jeff Greer and Finance Director Lance Hall introduced their new 

employees; 

 

(c) City Secretary Susie M. Homeyer gave an update on the Citizens University program; 

 

(d) Mayor Bert Miller gave an update on the latest Planning and Zoning meeting; 

 

(e) Councilmembers and staff informed the audience about upcoming events. 

 

5.  Mayor Pro-Tem Grant Holt moved to approve the first reading of Ordinance No. 915-20, 

amending Chapter 7, Municipal Court, Article 7.02, Fees, Costs and Special Expenses 

and repealing Section 7.02.002 Technology Fund and Section 7.02.003 Building 

Security Fund, seconded by Councilmember Geoff Horn and with each Councilmember 

voting AYE, the motion carried. 

 

6.  Councilmember Josh Fultz moved to accept the bid from Aggieland Construction in the 

amount of $39,940.00 for repairs to the Navasota Fire Station, seconded by 

Councilmember Bernie Gessner and with each Councilmember voting AYE, the motion 

carried. 

  

Citizen Deborah Richardson addressed the City Council before the vote was taken and 

inquired if any people were exposed to the mold and were there any liability issues. 

 

7.  Mayor Pro-Tem Grant Holt moved to extend the waste hauling contract with Republic 

Services for one year, ending in January 2022, seconded by Councilmember Geoff Horn 

and with each Councilmember voting AYE, the motion carried. 

 

8.  A discussion was held on the new City of Navasota’s website. 

 

9.  Councilmember Josh Fultz moved to approve the first reading of Ordinance No. 917-20, 

adopting Wireless Telecommunication Facilities Regulations, seconded by 

Councilmember Geoff Horn. The following votes were recorded: 

 

AYES:  Mayor Bert Miller, Councilmember Josh Fultz,   

Mayor Pro-Tem Grant Holt and Councilmember Geoff Horn  

 

NAYS:  Councilmember Bernie Gessner 

 

ABSTAIN:  None 

 

    Mayor Bert Miller announced that the motion carried. 



10.  Councilmember Geoff Horn moved to approve the first reading of Ordinance No. 916-

20, amending Chapter 3, Article 3.06 Signs, Section 3.06.010 Permissible Signs and 

Requirements, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Navasota, Texas, regarding 

monument, banner, wall mounted and programmable electric signs, seconded by 

Councilmember Josh Fultz and with each Councilmember voting AYE, the motion 

carried. 

 

11. Mayor Pro-Tem Grant Holt moved to approve the second reading of Ordinance No. 915-

20, amending Chapter 7, Municipal Court, Article 7.02, Fees, Costs and Special 

Expenses and repealing Section 7.02.002 Technology Fund and Section 7.02.003 

Building Security Fund, seconded by Councilmember Bernie Gessner and with each 

Councilmember voting AYE, the motion carried. 

 

12. Councilmember Josh Fultz moved to approve Resolution No. 668-20, approving a joint 

election contract between the City of Navasota, Grimes County and the Navasota 

Independent School District, seconded by Councilmember Geoff Horn and with each 

Councilmember voting AYE, the motion carried. 

 

13. Councilmember Bernie Gessner moved to approve the first reading of Ordinance No. 

918-20, amending the Uniform Right-of-Way management ordinance, seconded by 

Mayor Pro-Tem Grant Holt and with each Councilmember voting AYE, the motion 

carried. 

 

14. Mayor Bert Miller adjourned the meeting at 7:50 p.m. 

  

 

                                                  ______________________________ 

                                                           BERT MILLER, MAYOR 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_______________________________ 

SUSIE M. HOMEYER, CITY SECRETARY 





















































































































ORDINANCE NO. 916-20 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF NAVASOTA, TEXAS 
AMENDING CHAPTER 3, ARTICLE 3.06 SIGNS, SECTION 
3.06.010     PERMISSIBLE SIGNS AND REQUIREMENTS, OF 
THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF NAVASOTA, 
TEXAS REGARDING MONUMENT, BANNER, FLAG, 
FREEWAY/POLE, FREESTANDING WALL MOUNTED AND 
PROGRAMMABLE ELECTRIC SIGNS; PROVIDING FOR A 
SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR A REPEALER 
CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE; FINDING 
PROPER NOTICE OF MEETING; AND PROVIDING FOR 
CERTIFICATION OF ADOPTION. 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Navasota (“City”) is a Texas home-rule 

municipality; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Texas Local Government Code, Section 51.001, 
the City has the authority to adopt ordinances and regulations for the good 
government, peace and order of the City; and 

WHEREAS, as a home-rule municipality, Texas Local Government Code, 
Section 51.072 confirms that the City has the full power of local self-government; 
and 

WHEREAS,  the City Council of the City of Navasota previously adopted 
certain regulations relating to signs; and  

WHEREAS,  the City Council desires to amend certain regulations 
applicable to signs; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council finds and determines that it is in the best 
interest of the City to adopt the regulations as set forth herein below; 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of 
Navasota, Texas that: 
 
SECTION 1. FINDINGS INCORPORATED 
 
The findings set forth above are incorporated into the body of this ordinance as if 
fully set forth herein. 
 
 
 
 
 



SECTION 2. AMENDMENTS 
 
Chapter 3 Building Regulations, Article 3.06 Signs, Section 3.06.0003 Design 
guidelines, (3) Illuminated signs - light source: (A), of the Code of Ordinances of 
the City of Navasota is hereby amended to read as follows: 
 

(A) Every part of the light source of any illuminated sign allowed by 
this title shall be concealed from the view of vehicular traffic in the 
public right-of-way, and the light shall not travel directly to 
vehicular traffic in the public right-of-way but instead should be 
visible only from a reflecting or diffusing surface. 

  
Chapter 3 Building Regulations, Article 3.06 Signs, Section 3.06.010 Permissible 
Signs and Requirements, (7) Monument sign, (A) Generally, of the Code of 
Ordinances of the City of Navasota is hereby amended to read as follows: 
 
(7) Monument sign. 
 

(A) Generally: A sign permanently affixed to the ground, not elevated by 
any pole or structure and not attached to or dependent upon any 
building for support with no open space visible between the bottom of 
the sign face and the solid support base. 

 
Chapter 3 Building Regulations, Article 3.06 Signs, Section 3.06.010 Permissible 
Signs and Requirements, (3) Banner/flag sign, (B) Banner sign required 
conditions, (iii) of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Navasota is hereby 
amended to read as follows: 
 

(iii) Limited to 3 installations per calendar year beginning on the 
date of the first installation. A minimum 30-day waiting 
period is required between each banner sign installation. 

 
Chapter 3 Building Regulations, Article 3.06 Signs, Section 3.06.010 Permissible 
Signs and Requirements, (12) Wall-mounted sign, (B) Required conditions, of the 
Code of Ordinances of the City of Navasota is hereby amended by amending 
section (iii) and adding section (v) to read as follows: 
 

(iii) Area: Max 150 sq. ft. along the front of the building. Max 80 
sq. ft. along the side of building 

   
(v) Only 1 per roadway frontage 

 
Chapter 3 Building Regulations, Article 3.06 Signs, Section 3.06.010 Permissible 
Signs and Requirements, (3) Banner/flag sign, (C) Flag signs generally, of the 



Code of Ordinances of the City of Navasota is hereby amended to read as 
follows: 
 

(C)     Flag signs generally. A sign used for marketing purposes,; is 
temporary in nature,; and is inserted into or affixed to the ground, 
a base, a structure or planterother item to support the sign,; and is 
made of paper, plastic, fabric, or any non-rigid material. 

 
Chapter 3 Building Regulations, Article 3.06 Signs, Section 3.06.010 Permissible 
Signs and Requirements, (3) Banner/flag sign, (D) Flag sign required conditions, 
of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Navasota is hereby amended by 
amending section (ii), (b.) and adding section (iv) to read as follows: 
 

b.     Once a permit is revoked the City may remove the flag sign. 
The owner may retrieve the sign from City Hall. If the owner fails 
to retrieve the sign from City Hall within ten (10) days, the City 
may dispose of the sign. 

 
  (iv) Maximum dimensions: 8 ft. height, 2 ft. width. 
 
Chapter 3 Building Regulations, Article 3.06 Signs, Section 3.06.010 Permissible 
Signs and Requirements, (8) Programmable electronic sign, (B) Required 
conditions, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Navasota is hereby amended 
by adding section (x) to read as follows: 
   
  (x) Only 1 sign per lot or parcel of land. 
 
Chapter 3 Building Regulations, Article 3.06 Signs, Section 3.06.010 Permissible 
Signs and Requirements, (5) Freeway sign/pole sign, of the Code of Ordinances 
of the City of Navasota is hereby amended to read as follows: 
 
  (5) Freeway sign. 
 

(A) Generally. Any sign that is mounted on visible poles 
or structures. 
 

(B) Required conditions. 
 

(i) A sign oriented to and designed to be viewed 
from a freeway. 

(ii) Allowed within 400 feet of Highway 6. 
(iii) Maximum height 42-1/2 ft. 
(iv) Sign area maximum 150 sq. ft. 
(v) Only 1 sign per lot or parcel of land. 



 
Chapter 3 Building Regulations, Article 3.06 Signs, Section 3.06.010 Permissible 
Signs and Requirements, (6) Freestanding sign, (B) Required conditions, of the 
Code of Ordinances of the City of Navasota is hereby amended by adding section 
(v) to read as follows: 
 
  (v) Only 1 sign per business location 
 
Chapter 3 Building Regulations, Article 3.06 Signs, Section 3.06.011 Calculating 
area of sign, Sign Table, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Navasota is 
hereby amended to read as follows: 
 

Sign Type Maximum Area (sq.ft) Maximum height (ft.) Number allowed 

Architectural n/a n/a n/a 

Awning n/a n/a n/a 

Banner n/a n/a 3 per year 

Canopy/Hanging 4 7.5 minimum height 
from walking surface 

n/a 

Flag 16 8ft  1 per 20 feet of 
landscaped 
frontage 

Freeway/Pole 150 42.5 1 per lot or 
parcel 

Freestanding 32 or 64 when 400 feet from highway 6 6 1 per business 
location 

Monument 32 or 50 when 400 feet from highway 6 6 or 10 when 400 
feet from highway 6 

1 per business 
or subdivision 
location 

Programmable Electric 24 30 1 per lot or 
parcel 

Projecting 30 n/a 1 per street 
frontage 

Pylon 64 8 or 30 when on 
highway 6 frontage 

1 per street 
frontage 

Sidewalk 9 34.5 1 

Wall-mounted 150 front, 80 side  n/a 1 per street 
frontage 

Real-estate\Development 8 n/a 1 

Construction 32 n/a 1 

    

 
 
 
 
 
 



SECTION 3. CUMULATIVE EFFECT  
 

This Ordinance shall be cumulative of all laws of the State of Texas and the 
United States governing the subject matter of this Ordinance, now existing or as 
hereafter amended.  
 
SECTION 4. SEVERABILITY CLAUSE 
 
It is hereby declared to be the intention of the City Council that the phrases, 
clauses, sentences, paragraphs and sections of this Ordinance are severable, and 
if any phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance shall be 
declared unconstitutional or invalid by the valid judgment or decree of any court 
of competent jurisdiction, such unconstitutionality or invalidity shall not affect 
any of the remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs and sections of 
this Ordinance, since the same would have been enacted by the City Council 
without the incorporation of this Ordinance of any such unconstitutional or 
invalid phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section. 
 
SECTION 5. REPEALER CLAUSE 
 
Any provision of any prior ordinance of the City whether codified or uncodified, 
which are in conflict with any provision of this Ordinance, are hereby repealed to 
the extent of the conflict, but all other provisions of the ordinances of the City 
whether codified or uncodified, which are not in conflict with the provisions of 
this Ordinance, shall remain in full force and effect. 

 
SECTION 6. EFFECTIVE DATE 
 
This Ordinance shall become effective from and after its passage, approval and 
adoption on second reading, and its publication as may be required by law. 

 
SECTION 7. NOTICE OF MEETING 
 
Notice of the time and place, where and when said Ordinance would be 
considered by the City Council at a public meeting was given in accordance with 
applicable law, prior to the time designated for meeting.  

 
 
PASSED ON FIRST READING THIS THE 24TH DAY OF FEBRUARY, 2020. 
 
                                                                             
                                                         __________________________ 
                                                                   BERT MILLER, MAYOR 
 



ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
SUSIE M. HOMEYER, CITY SECRETARY 
 
 
 
PASSED ON SECOND READING THIS THE 9TH DAY OF MARCH, 2020. 
 
                                                                       
                                                          __________________________ 
                                                                    BERT MILLER, MAYOR 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
SUSIE M. HOMEYER, CITY SECRETARY 



ORDINANCE NO.  917-20 
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF NAVASOTA, TEXAS AMENDING CHAPTER 3 
BUILDING REGULATIONS, OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF 
NAVASOTA, TEXAS REGARDING WIRELSS TELECOMMUNICATIONS 
FACILITIES; PROVIDING FOR A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR A 
REPEALER CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE; FINDING PROPER 
NOTICE OF MEETING; AND PROVIDING FOR CERTIFICATION OF ADOPTION. 

 
 WHEREAS, the City of Navasota (“City”) is a Texas home-rule municipality; and 

 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to Texas Local Government Code, Section 51.001, the City 
has the authority to adopt ordinances and regulations for the good government, peace 
and order of the City; and 

 
 WHEREAS, as a home-rule municipality, Texas Local Government Code, Section 
51.072 confirms that the City has the full power of local self-government; and 

 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Navasota seeks to enact regulations 
regarding the development of wireless telecommunication facilities; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council finds and determines that it is in the best interest of 
the City to adopt the regulations as set forth herein below; 
 
     NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Navasota, 
Texas: 
 
SECTION 1. FINDINGS INCORPORATED 
 
The findings set forth above are incorporated into the body of this ordinance as if fully 
set forth herein. 
 
SECTION 2. AMENDMENTS 
  
Chapter 3 Building Regulations, of the Code of Ordinances, City of Navasota, Texas is 

hereby amended by adding Article 3.08 Wireless Telecommunications Facilities to read 
as follows: 
 

ARTICLE 3.08 WIRELESS TELECOMMUNICATIONS FACILITIES 
 
Sec. 3.08.001     Applicability; geographic scope 
 



All wireless telecommunication facilities erected, placed, rebuilt, enlarged, extended, 
altered, replaced, or relocated within the City shall comply with the requirements of this 
Article. 
 
Sec. 3.08.002     Purpose 
 
Wireless telecommunication facilities are important and necessary infrastructure. When 
properly regulated, wireless telecommunication facilities can serve as a great economic 
asset. In enacting this Article, it is the intent of the City to promote the sound 
development of wireless telecommunication facilities and to comprehensively address 
community aesthetic concerns about visual clutter and visual blight in the environment. 
The regulation of wireless telecommunication facilities in the City is intended to promote 
an aesthetically pleasing environment with these concerns in mind. Wireless 
telecommunication facilities shall be consistent with land use patterns, and shall be well 
maintained and, in addition, shall not create safety hazards. 
 

Sec. 3.08.003 Application Submittal Requirements.  
 
A.  Application contents.  To make application for a wireless telecommunications facility 
the following is required:   
 
(1) Completed development application for site plan review and application fee 

submitted to the Community Development department.  
  

(2)   A drawing and any supporting documents that identifies:  
  

(a)  The location of existing applicant-owned wireless telecommunication 
facilities in the City and the City’s ETJ;  
  
(b)  The type and height of each existing facility;  
  
(c)  The type and height of the proposed facility;  
 
(d)  Show coverage to be provided by proposed tower equipment; 

  
(e) Provide documentation of a genuine effort in attaching to an existing 
support structure; a certified letter addressed to potential lessors, in 
addition to evidence that demonstrates that no existing tower or support 
structure located within city limits can accommodate the applicant's 
proposed wireless telecommunications facility. Any of the following may 
be submitted as evidence:  
 

(i) No existing structures are located within the geographic area 
required to meet applicant's engineering requirements.  



  
(ii) Existing structures are of insufficient height to meet applicant's 
engineering requirements.  
  
(iii) Existing structures do not have sufficient structural strength to 
support applicant's proposed antenna and related equipment.  
  
(iv) The applicant's proposed antenna would cause electromagnetic 
interference with the antenna on the existing structures, or the 
antenna on the existing structures would cause interference with 
the applicant's proposed antenna.  
  
(v) The fees, costs, or contractual provisions required by the owner 
in order to share an existing structure or to adapt an existing 
support structure for sharing are unreasonable. Costs exceeding 
those for new tower development are presumed to be 
unreasonable.  
  
(vi) The applicant demonstrates that there are other limiting factors 
that render existing structures unsuitable. It is not necessary to 
reveal future plans or locations for additional proposed facilities. 
The plan will assist the City in understanding the need for any new 
wireless telecommunication facility, assess the land use impacts, 
and aid in comprehensive land use planning.  

  
(3)  Visual impact analysis; presented by one of two methods, photographs or 
drawings. In either case, four views or elevations shall be submitted looking toward the 
site (typically, north, south, east, and west) including the site and the surrounding 
properties measured from the center point of the tower out to a distance equal to three 
times the height of the proposed tower. This drawing will depict a "skyline" view 
showing the entire height of the proposed tower and the surrounding structures, trees, 
or any other objects contributing to the skyline profile. The applicant shall draw the 
proposed tower directly on the photographs in black ink.  
  
(4)  Proof of compliance with FCC regulations. A and a copy of the applicant's FCC 
license, or, if the applicant is not an FCC license holder, a copy of at least one letter of 
commitment from an FCC license holder to locate at least one antenna on the 
applicant's tower. 
  
(5)  Notification of an impending environmental assessment required by the National 
Environmental Protection Agency (NEPA) and a copy when the assessment is completed 
(if applicable).  
  



(6)  A letter addressed to the City declaring an intent and willingness to build out a 
proposed tower to allow co-location space for at least two other service providers.  
  
(7)  Site plan, per site plan development requirements.; Any information of an 
engineering nature that the applicant submits, whether civil, mechanical, or electrical 
shall be certified by a licensed professional engineer.  
 
B. Upon receipt of a complete application for a wireless telecommunications facility, the 
Development Officer will process the application and review the site plan and other 
information provided with the application. including signature lines for both the owner 
of the wireless telecommunications facility and/or the owner of the property indicating 
an agreement to remove the entire wireless telecommunications facility and any related 
equipment within 60 days of abandonment. Any information of an engineering nature 
that the applicant submits, whether civil, mechanical, or electrical shall be certified by a 
licensed professional engineer. Upon receipt of the above items, the Development 
Officer will process the application and review the site plan. Upon approval, the site 
plan will be forwarded to the planning and zoning commission for consideration.  
 
Sec. 3.08.004 General Standards and Design Requirements.  
 
The site development requirements for wireless telecommunications facilities include 
the normal standards for any other type of development according to the City of 
Navasota local building codes and Code of Ordinances as well as some additional 
standards as follows:  
 

(1) Additional setbacks and separation requirements. Wireless 
telecommunications facilities are required to comply with the standard 
setbacks for each zoning district and shall comply with the landscaping and 
screening requirements of this section. Some additional setbacks or 
separation shall be required depending on the type of wireless 
telecommunications facility and the potential location of that facility:  
 

a. To protect citizens in their homesand promote the health and safety of 
the public, towers shall be placed a tower height distance away from 
any residential structure or residential zone boundary at a distance 
equal to or great than the height of the tower being installed.   
 

b. To protect city thoroughfares and gateways, a wireless  
telecommunications facility shall be placed at least 600 feet from the 
centerline of such designated areas.  

 
c. To protect the architectural beauty and significance of zoning districts, 

towers shall be placed at or behind the imaginary front line of the most 
majorlargest structure on site (largest in gross floor area).  



 
(2) Security fencing. Towers shall be enclosed by security fencing not less 

than six feet (6’) in height and shall also be equipped with an appropriate 
anticlimbing device.  
 

(3) Special aesthetic and lighting standards.   
 

a. New transmission towers shall maintain a galvanized steel finish or be 
painted in accordance with any applicable standards of the FAA.  
 
b. The design of the related buildings and equipment shall, to the extent 
possible and as allowed by law, use materials, colors, textures, screening, 
and landscaping that will blend the facility to the natural setting and built 
environment.  
 
c. If an antenna is installed on a support structure other than a tower, the 
antenna and supporting electrical and mechanical equipment must be of a 
neutral color that is identical to, or closely compatible with, the color of 
the supporting structure so as to make the antenna and related 
equipment as visually unobtrusiveness as possible.  
  
d. Wireless telecommunications facilities shall not be artificially lighted 
with the exception of motion detectors as security lighting, unless required 
by the FAA or other applicable authority. If lighting is required, the City 
may review the available lighting alternatives and approve the design that 
would cause the least disturbance to the surrounding properties.  

  
(4)  Landscaping and screening requirements. The following requirements shall 
govern the landscaping and screening for a transmission tower or any parabolic 
antenna larger than two meters: 

  
a. Tower compounds shall be landscaped with a buffer of plant materials that 
effectively screens the base of the wireless telecommunications facility site from 
view of the public right-of-way. The standard buffer shall consist of a landscaped 
strip at least four feet (4’) wide outside the perimeter of the compound. A 
screening fence may be used in part to screen a wireless telecommunications 
facility but must be in addition to the required landscaping.  
  
b. Certain parabolic dishes attached to the ground shall be screened from view of 
the public right-of way by a combination of siting at or behind the imaginary 
front line of the most major largest structure on site (largest in gross floor area) 
and a landscaped landscaping astrip at least four feet (4’) wide strip between the 
dish and right-of-way.  
  



c. Existing mature tree growth and natural landforms on the site shall be 
preserved to the maximum extent possible. In some cases, where towers are 
sited on large, wooded parcels, natural growth around the site perimeter may be 
a sufficient buffer. Whether natural growth is sufficient shall be determined by 
the City at its sole discretion.  
  
d. It is the responsibility of the wireless telecommunications facility owner to 
maintain any required landscaping.  
 
e. Landscaping shall be completed prior to receiving building occupancy. 
Exceptions for weather delays to landscape completion may be considered. 
 
f. Street trees shall be a minimum four (4) inch (4”) caliper at initial planting. 
Street trees at maturity shall have a minimum branch height of eight (8) feet 
(8’). All other newly planted deciduous trees on the project site shall be a 
minimum of three (3) inch (3”) caliper and coniferous trees shall be a minimum 
height of twelve (12) feet (12’). 

  
(5)  Parking and access. All proposed transmission towers shall provide a point of 
access from right-of-way which is in conformance with City driveway standards. No off-
street parking is required. 
 
Sec. 3.08.005 Appeals and variances 
 
(a) Appeals or variances from this Article shall be heard by the City Council. 

 
(b) Appeals to the City Council may be taken by any person aggrieved, or by any 

officer, department, or board of the City affected by any decision of the City 
Manager or his designee relative to the enforcement of this Article. Such appeal 
shall be taken within fifteen (15) days' time after the decision has been rendered 
by the City Manager or his designee, by filing with the City Manager or his 
designee a notice of appeal specifying the grounds thereof, and upon payment of 
a fee in an amount determined by the City Council. The City Manager or his 
designee shall provide to the City Council all papers constituting the record upon 
which the action appealed from was taken. 

 
(c) An appeal shall be heard at a public meeting and any interested party may 

appear before the City Council in person, by agent, or by attorney. The burden of 
proof shall be on the applicant to establish the necessary facts to warrant 
favorable action of the City Council on the matter.  
 

(d) The City Council, upon an affirmative vote of a majority of the City Council, may 
reverse or affirm, wholly or in part, or may modify the order, requirements, 
decision or determination appealed from and make such order, requirement, 



decision or determination that in the City Council's opinion should be made. The 
City Council shall have the power to impose reasonable conditions in order to 
assure compliance with the provisions of this Article and protect adjacent 
property. 

 
Sec. 3.08.006 Abandonment 
 
 A wireless telecommunications facility and any related equipment that has been 
abandoned shall be removed within six months (6) of abandonment unless the facility is 
re-activated. 

SECTION 3. CUMULATIVE EFFECT  

This Ordinance shall be cumulative of all laws of the State of Texas and the United 
States governing the subject matter of this Ordinance, now existing or as hereafter 
amended.  
 
SECTION 4. SEVERABILITY CLAUSE 
 
It is hereby declared to be the intention of the City Council that the phrases, clauses, 
sentences, paragraphs and sections of this Ordinance are severable, and if any phrase, 
clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance shall be declared 
unconstitutional or invalid by the valid judgment or decree of any court of competent 
jurisdiction, such unconstitutionality or invalidity shall not affect any of the remaining 
phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs and sections of this Ordinance, since the same 
would have been enacted by the City Council without the incorporation of this 
Ordinance of any such unconstitutional or invalid phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph 
or section. 
 
SECTION 5. REPEALER CLAUSE 
 
Any provision of any prior ordinance of the City whether codified or uncodified, which 
are in conflict with any provision of this Ordinance, are hereby repealed to the extent of 
the conflict, but all other provisions of the ordinances of the City whether codified or 
uncodified, which are not in conflict with the provisions of this Ordinance, shall remain 
in full force and effect. 

 
SECTION 6. EFFECTIVE DATE 
 
This Ordinance shall become effective from and after its passage, approval and 
adoption on second reading, and its publication as may be required by law. 

 
 
 



SECTION 7. NOTICE OF MEETING 
 
Notice of the time and place, where and when said Ordinance would be considered by 
the City Council at a public meeting was given in accordance with applicable law, prior to 
the time designated for meeting.  

 
 
PASSED ON FIRST READING THIS THE 24TH DAY OF FEBRUARY, 2020. 
 
                                                                             
                                                         ______________________ 
                                                               BERT MILLER, MAYOR 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
SUSIE M. HOMEYER, CITY SECRETARY 
 
 
 
PASSED ON SECOND READING THIS THE 9TH DAY OF MARCH, 2020. 
 
                                                                       
                                                          _______________________ 
                                                                BERT MILLER, MAYOR 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
SUSIE M. HOMEYER, CITY SECRETARY 
 



 

 

 
 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 918-20 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF NAVASOTA, 
TEXAS, AMENDING CHAPTER 13 UTILITES, 
ARTICLE 13.07 UNIFORM RIGHT-OF-WAY 
MANAGEMENT BY AMENDING REQUIREMENTS 
GOVERNING THE UNIFORM USE, OCCUPANCY 
AND CONSTRUCTION IN THE CITY’S PUBLIC 
RIGHTS-OF-WAY;  PROVIDING FOR THE 
FOLLOWING: REPEALER; SEVERABILITY; 
EFFECTIVE DATE; AND PROPER NOTICE AND 
MEETING 

 
WHEREAS, the laws of the State of Texas have consistently and expressly 

preserved the historic authority of Texas municipalities to manage the public rights-
of-way and regulate the use, occupancy and construction in those public rights-of-
way; and 
 

WHEREAS, in Chapter 283 of the Texas Local Government Code, the State 
of Texas has granted telecommunications companies holding a certificate from the 
Public Utilities Commission of Texas the authority to place their poles, conduit, 
cable, switches and related appurtenances and facilities within the City’s public 
rights-of-way; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council finds that it is necessary for the good 
government, peace or order of the City to amend requirements regulating the use of 
public rights-of-ways within the City; 
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL 
OF THE CITY OF NAVASOTA, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
SECTION 1. 
 
The findings set forth above are incorporated into the body of this ordinance as if 
fully set forth herein. 
 
SECTION 2. 
 
Chapter 13 Utilities, Code of Ordinances, City of Navasota, Texas is hereby amended 
to add the following title to Article 13.07:  “Article 13.07 Uniform Right-of-Way 
Management.” 
 
 



 

 

 
 

 

SECTION 23. 
 
Chapter 13 Utilities, Article 13.07 Uniform Right-of-Way Management, Section V. 
Construction Standards, A. Rights-of-Way Construction Permits is hereby 
amended by adding subsection (f) and (g) to read as follows: 

 
(f) Provide documentation that verifies locations of existing utilities to 
avoid tolerance zone issues. 

 
(g) Provide a detailed description of the safe excavation methods and 
procedures to be utilized, and the associated measures to be 
implemented to protect and promote the health and safety of the 
public. 

 
Chapter 13 Utilities, Article 13.07 Uniform Right-of-Way Management, Section V. 
Construction Standards, J. Plans of Record is hereby amended by adding subsection 
(3) to read as follows: 
 

3.  As part of the “as built” plans the Grantee shall also submit GIS line 
    data  showing GPS accurate locations of facilities installed within    
    the rights-of-way to the City for GIS mapping purposes. 

 
SECTION 34. REPEALER 
 
All ordinances or parts of ordinances in force when the provisions of this Ordinance 
become effective which are inconsistent or in conflict with the terms and provisions 
contained in this Ordinance are hereby repealed only to the extent of any such 
conflict. 

 
SECTION 45. SEVERABILITY 

 
It is hereby declared to be the intention of the City Council that the phrases, 
clauses, sentences, paragraphs and sections of this Ordinance be severable, and if 
any phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance is declared 
unconstitutional or invalid by the judgment or decree of any court of competent 
jurisdiction, such invalidity shall not affect any of the remaining phrases, clauses, 
sentences, paragraphs or sections of this Ordinance, and the remainder of this 
Ordinance shall be enforced as written. 

 
SECTION 56. EFFECTIVE DATE 
 
This Ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after the date of passage and 
upon publication as required by law. 



 

 

 
 

 

 
SECTION 67. PROPER NOTICE AND MEETING 
 
It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this Ordinance 
was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act, 
Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code.  
 
 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED THIS THE 24TH DAY OF FEBRUARY, 2020. 
 
 
                                                                  ____________________________ 
                                                                        BERT MILLER, MAYOR 
        
 

 

ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________ 
SUSIE M. HOMEYER, CITY SECRETARY 
 
 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED THIS THE 9TH DAY OF MARCH, 2020. 
 
 
                                                                  ____________________________ 
                                                                        BERT MILLER, MAYOR 
        
 

 

ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________ 
SUSIE M. HOMEYER, CITY SECRETARY 



CITY OF NAVASOTA
MISCELLANEOUS ITEMS

1. AGENDA PLANNING CALENDAR

http://174.127.112.94/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1583429146x_at.pdf


 
AGENDA PLANNING CALENDAR 

 

MARCH 9, 2020 - DEADLINE FOR SUBMITTING ITEMS AND COVER SHEETS FOR THIS MEETING IS 2/24/2020 

1.   Called to order 
2.   Invocation/Pledge of Allegiance 
3.   Remarks of visitors 
4.   Staff Report: (a) Years of service awards; (b) 2019 TML Awards; (c) Drainage and parking 

lot update; (d) Clean up event update; (e) Birthday Bash update; (f) Board and Commission 
update; and (g) Reports from staff and City Council 

5.   Public hearing on Pecan Lakes subdivision – Phase III 
6.   1st reading of Ordinance No. 919-20, rezoning Pecan Lakes – Phase III 
7.   Workshop on capital improvement projects 
8.   Public hearing on amending Chapter 14, site plan process 
9.   1st reading of Ordinance No. 920-20 - amending Chapter 14, Zoning, site plan process 
10.  Public hearing on amending Chapter 10, utility tap locations 
11. 1st reading of Ordinance No. 921-20 - amending Chapter 10, Subdivision Regulations, utility 

tap locations 
12.  Discussion on properties to be sold in Park Place, Block H, Lots 1 & 2 
13. Consent agenda: (a) Minutes for the month of February 2020; (b) Expenditures for the 

month of February 2020; (c) 2nd reading of Ordinance No. 916-20, amending sign 
ordinance; (d) 2nd reading of Ordinance No. 917-20, wireless telecommunication facilities 
regulations; and (e) 2nd reading of Ordinance No. 918-20, amending Uniform Right-of-Way 
Management Ordinance 

14. Adjourn 

 

MARCH 23, 2020 - DEADLINE FOR SUBMITTING ITEMS AND COVER SHEETS FOR THIS MEETING IS 3/09/2020 

1.   Called to order 
2.   Invocation/Pledge of Allegiance 
3.   Remarks of visitors 
4.   Staff Report: (a) Audit results of gas system audit; (b) TML Award – 15 years for excellence 

on gas system; (c) Board and Commission update; and (d) Reports from staff and City 
Council 

5.   Approval of audit for FY 2018-2019 
6.   Council meeting procedures 
7.   Specific use permit 
8.   Bid award for 2019 Street Maintenance project 
9.   Bank depository extension of contract 
10. 1st reading of Ordinance No. _______, subdivision ordinance 
11. 1st reading of Ordinance No. _______, Zoning ordinance 
12. 1st reading of Ordinance No. _______, amendment to Library budget 
13. Award bid for impound lot – PD 
14.  Consent agenda: (1) 2nd reading of Ordinance No. 919-20, rezoning Pecan Lakes – Phase 

III; (2) 2nd reading of Ordinance No. 920-20 - amending Chapter 14, Zoning, site plan 
process; and (3) 2nd reading of Ordinance No. 921-20 - amending Chapter 10, Subdivision 
Regulations, utility tap locations 

15. Navasota Citizens University orientation by City Council 
16. Adjourn 

 
 
 
 



 
 
 

APRIL 13, 2020 - DEADLINE FOR SUBMITTING ITEMS AND COVER SHEETS FOR THIS MEETING IS 3/30/2020 

1.   Called to order 
2.   Invocation/Pledge of Allegiance 
3.   Remarks of visitors 
4.   Staff Report: (a) Proclamation – Telecommunicator Week; (b) Board and Commission 

update; and (c) Reports from staff and City Council 
5.   Consent agenda: (a) Minutes for the month of March 2020; (b) Expenditures for the month 

of March 2020; (c) 2nd reading of Ordinance No. _____ - amendment to Library budget; 
     (d) 2nd reading of Ordinance No. _______, subdivision ordinance; (e) 2nd reading of 

Ordinance No. _______, Zoning ordinance; and (f) 2nd reading of Ordinance No. _______, 
amendment to Library budget 

6.   Adjourn 

 


	Regular City Council Meeting
	Agenda Item No.  -  City Manager's Message and Statements and Priorities
	 City Manager's Message
	 Statements and Priorities

	Agenda Item No. 4 -  Staff Report:
(a) Staff recognition for years of service;
(b) 2019 Texas Municipal League Awards;
(c) Drainage and parking lot project;
(d) Clean-up event ;
(e) Texas Birthday Bash results;
(f) Board and Commission update; and
(g) Reports from City Staff or City Officials regarding items of community interests, including expressions of thanks, congratulations or condolence; information regarding holiday schedules; honorary or salutary recognition of public officials, public employees, or other citizens; reminders about upcoming events organized or sponsored by the City; information regarding social, ceremonial, or community events organized or sponsored by a non-City entity that is scheduled to be attended by City officials or employees; and announcements involving imminent threats to the public health and safety of people in the City that has arisen after the posting of the agenda.
	Agenda Item No. 5 -  Conduct a public hearing for the purpose of receiving public comment and testimony regarding a zoning change application submitted by James C Hassell for the properties located in the A0062 J Whitesides Abstract. The zoning change application requests to change the zoning from A/O: Agriculture/Open Space District to PUD Pecan Lakes Estates Phase 3, for the development of a 102.4197-acre single dwelling unit subdivision. The properties affected are legally described as A0062 J Whitesides, Tract 19, Acres 13.4696, A0062 J Whitesides, Tract 14-3, Acres 1.2275, A0062 J Whitesides, Tract 20-2, Acres 57.6204, A0062 J Whitesides, Tract 14-2, Acres 43.9641, located in Navasota, Grimes County, Texas.
	 Staff Report
	 Concept Plan

	Agenda Item No. 6 -  Consideration and possible action on the first reading of Ordinance No. 919-20, changing the current zoning from A/O: Agriculture/Open Space District to PUD Pecan Lakes Estates Phase 3, for the development of a 102.4197-acre single dwelling unit subdivision, the properties affected are legally described as A0062 J Whitesides, Tract 19, Acres 13.4696, A0062 J Whitesides, Tract 14-3, Acres 1.2275, A0062 J Whitesides, Tract 20-2, Acres 57.6204, A0062 J Whitesides, Tract 14-2, Acres 43.9641, located in Navasota, Grimes County, Texas.
	 Ordinance No. 919-20

	Agenda Item No. 7 -  Workshop and possible action on a capital improvements project for utilities and streets.
	 CIP Information

	Agenda Item No. 8 -  Conduct a public hearing for the purpose of receiving public comment and testimony regarding amending Chapter 14 Zoning, Exhibit A Zoning Ordinance, Article XXI Building Permits, Certificates of Occupancy and Certificates of Compliance, 21.5 Site Plan Process, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Navasota, Grimes County, Texas, adding GIS requirements to as-built plans.
	 Staff Report

	Agenda Item No. 9 -  Consideration and possible action on the first reading of Ordinance No. 920-20, amending Chapter 14 Zoning, Exhibit A Zoning Ordinance, Article XXI Building Permits, Certificates of Occupancy and Certificates of Compliance, 21.5 Site Plan Process, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Navasota, Grimes County, Texas, adding GIS requirements to as-built plans.
	 Ordinance No. 920-20

	Agenda Item No. 10 -  Conduct a public hearing for the purpose of receiving public comment and testimony regarding amending Chapter 10, Subdivision Regulation, Article 10.02 Subdivision Ordinance, Exhibit A Subdivision Development, Article 7 Requirements for Improvement, Section 7.08 Utilities, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Navasota, Grimes County, Texas, regarding utility tap locations within utility easements and adding GIS requirements to as-built plans.
	 Staff Report

	Agenda Item No. 11 -  Consideration and possible action on the first reading of Ordinance No. 921-20, amending Chapter 10, Subdivision Regulation, Article 10.02 Subdivision Ordinance, Exhibit A Subdivision Development, Article 7 Requirements for Improvement, Section 7.08 Utilities, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Navasota, Grimes County, Texas, regarding utility tap locations within utility easements and adding GIS requirements to as-built plans.
	 Ordinance No. 921-20

	Agenda Item No. 12 -  Discussion, consideration and possible action on sale of City owned properties legally described as Park Place, Block H, Lot 1, 2, located in Navasota, Grimes County, Texas, and method of sale.
	 Aerial Map

	Agenda Item No. 13 -  Consent Agenda: The following items may be acted upon with one motion and vote. No separate discussion or action is necessary unless requested by the Mayor or a City Councilmember, in which event the item will be removed from the Consent Agenda for separate discussion and/or action by the City Council as part of the regular agenda.
Consent Items Are:

A. Consideration and possible action on the minutes for the month of February, 2020;
B. Consideration and possible action on the expenditures for the month of February, 2020;
C. Consideration and possible action on the second reading of Ordinance No. 916-20, amending Chapter 3, Article 3.06 Signs, Section 3.06.010 Permissible Signs and Requirements, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Navasota, Texas, regarding monument, banner, flag freeway/pole, freestanding, wall mounted and programmable signs;
D. Consideration and possible action on the second reading of Ordinance No. 917-20, adopting Wireless Telecommunication Facilities Regulations; and
E. Consideration and possible action on the second reading of Ordinance No. 918-20, amending the Uniform Right-of-Way management ordinance.









first reading of Ordinance No. 892-19, changing the current zoning from A/O: Agriculture/open space district to B-1: General Business District for the property legally described as A0044 Jesse B MC Nealy, Tract 31-1, 2, Par 1, Acres 2.35, 31-1, 2, Par 1, changing the current zoning from split A/O: Agriculture/open space district/ B-1: General Business District to B-1: General Business District for the properties legally described as A0044 Jesse B MC Nealy, Tract 50, Acres 3.209, Thane 90 Subdivision, Lot A, Acres 2.057, changing the current zoning from A/O: Agriculture/open space district to R-3: high density, multi-dwelling unit, residential district, for the properties legally described as A0044 Jesse B MC Nealy, Tract 51-4, Acres 25.6104, A0044 Jesse B MC Nealy, Tract 48-7, Acres 18, A0044 Jesse B MC Nealy, Tract 41-2, Acres 5.4156, located in Navasota, Grimes County, Texas.


Consideration and possible action on the first reading of Ordinance No. 910-19, changing the current zoning from A/O: Agriculture/open space district to M-2: Heavy Industrial District for the property legally described as A0046 J Moore, Tract 4-3, Acres 22.809, changing the current zoning from A/O: Agriculture/open space district to R-1A: high density, single dwelling unit, 7,000 square foot lot, residential district for the property legally described as A0046 J Moore, Tract 21-1, Acres 54.00, changing the current zoning from A/O: Agriculture/open space district to R-2: medium density, multi-dwelling unit, residential district for the properties legally described as A0055-6 D Tyler, Tract 6, Par 19, Acres 67.50, A0055-6 D Tyler, Tract 6, Par 18, Acres 23.52 and A0055-6 D Tyler, Tract 19-1, Acres 10.00, located in Navasota, Grimes County, Texas.
Consideration and possible action on the first reading of Ordinance No. 910-19, changing the current zoning from A/O: Agriculture/open space district to M-2: Heavy Industrial District for the property legally described as A0046 J Moore, Tract 4-3, Acres 22.809, changing the current zoning from A/O: Agriculture/open space district to R-1A: high density, single dwelling unit, 7,000 square foot lot, residential district for the property legally described as A0046 J Moore, Tract 21-1, Acres 54.00, changing the current zoning from A/O: Agriculture/open space district to R-2: medium density, multi-dwelling unit, residential district for the properties legally described as A0055-6 D Tyler, Tract 6, Par 19, Acres 67.50, A0055-6 D Tyler, Tract 6, Par 18, Acres 23.52 and A0055-6 D Tyler, Tract 19-1, Acres 10.00, located in Navasota, Grimes County, Texas.
	 Minutes - 02/10/2020
	 Minutes - 02/24/2020
	 Expenditures for February 2020
	 Ordinance No. 916-20
	 Ordinance No. 917-20
	 Ordinance No. 918-20

	Agenda Item No. 14 -  1. Planning Calendar

	 Agenda Planning Calendar


